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have been sharing the evidence that supports models of nursing care delivery that ensure continuity 

of care and continuity of caregiver, using RNs for the total nursing care of complex or unstable 

patients with unpredictable outcomes, and RPNs for the total nursing care of stable patients with 

predictable outcomes.  

During the past year, we released four new best practice guidelines: Ostomy Care and Management; 

Decision Support for Adults Living with Chronic Kidney Disease; Supporting Clients on Methadone 

Maintenance Treatment; and Preventing and Managing Violence in the Workplace. In addition, 

RNAO published revisions of the following guidelines: Nursing Management of Hypertension; 

Subcutaneous Administration of Insulin in Adults with Type II Diabetes; Subcutaneous 

Administration of Insulin in Adults with Type II Diabetes – French; and Nursing Care of 

Dyspnea: The 6th Vital Sign in Individuals with Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease. RNAO’s 

provincial, national and international influence on nursing practice was recognized this year with 

three prestigious awards. For our role in bringing evidence-based nursing knowledge and research to 

long-term care, we received the Minister’s Award of Excellence for Innovation. The Canadian Dental 

Association presented RNAO with its Oral Health Promotion Award for our best practice guideline 

on oral health and related implementation resources. Internationally, we received Sigma Theta Tau’s 

Practice Academe Innovation Collaboration Award for the joint RNAO/University of Ottawa 

Nursing Best Practice Research Unit and our 21 Best Practice Spotlight Organizations. We are very 

proud to be recognized as a leading organization. 

We are continuing to increase the international profile of RNAO. Last summer, members presented 

at The International Council of Nurses 24th Quadrennial Congress in Durban, South Africa. Faculty 

of Nursing and Chief Nursing Officers from all of Latin and Central America were exposed to 

RNAO’s BPG work at a research symposium and workshop in Colombia. Another presentation with 

the interdisciplinary team of CENCEC (Centre for Clinical Evaluation) in Cuba is bringing positive 

development, and we hope that all the guidelines will soon be translated into Spanish thanks to the 

government of Spain. We remain committed to advancing the nursing profession in China and 

regularly provide workshops and other forms of professional development to our colleagues there.  

 

Professional development for our members is an ongoing priority. In the past year, our Centre for 

Professional Nursing Excellence held numerous events including the 8th International Elder Care 

Conference, the Annual Nurse Practitioner Conference and the first ever Mid-Career Nurse 

Symposium, in addition to three summer institutes and leadership workshops for new nursing 

graduates. The growing number of Centre members -25- have also benefitted from customized 

workshops, consultations, action plans, focus groups and retreats. 

 

As RNAO marks its 85th year, our organization is larger, more strategic and more influential than 

ever. During the past decade alone, our membership has doubled in numbers and in the strength of 

our voice and actions, from 14,699 in 1999 to 29,082 in 2009. Our anniversary, however, isn’t the 

only milestone we’re celebrating this year. 2010 is also International Year of the Nurse. In October, 

RNAO will be holding an international conference titled Knowledge, the Power of Nursing: 

Celebrating Best Practice Guidelines and Clinical Leadership to recognize the contributions of 

clinical nursing excellence and evidence-based practice to quality care and global health outcomes.  

 

As you can see from these highlights, there is much for us to celebrate at this AGM. We can’t think 

of a more exciting time to be in nursing and the passion, intelligence and commitment of RNAO 

members is taking our profession to heights that RNAO’s original members could only dream of. 

 

 

 

Wendy Fucile RN, BScN, MPA, CHE               Doris Grinspun, RN, MSN, PhD (c), O.ONT. 

President                                            Executive Director  

 

 

Dear RNAO members, 

It is with pleasure that we present the 2010 Annual General Meeting Report and invite you to reflect 

on the important contributions that you, our fellow members and our professional association have 

made to nursing and health in the past year. As RNAO celebrates its 85th anniversary with the theme 

Nurses: Vision, courage and strength from our roots, we are proud to be part of an organization that 

respects the wisdom of its founding and current members, operates as a vital and influential force to 

shape the present, and proactively envisions ways to improve the lives of nurses and the people we 

serve.  

In January, RNAO kick-started Ontario’s 2011 provincial election campaign by being the first 

organization in the province to unveil comprehensive policy recommendations it wants provincial 

parties to adopt when developing their platforms. The report, Creating Vibrant Communities: 

RNAO’s Challenge to Ontario’s Political Parties, was released during our 11th annual Queen’s Park 

Day. The document outlines recommendations in six key areas: Strengthening Social Determinants, 

Equity and Healthy Communities; Building Sustainable, Green Communities; Enhancing Medicare; 

Improving Access to Nursing Services; Building a Nursing Career in Ontario; and Embracing our 

Democracy and Strengthening Public Services. 

RNAO’s platform calls for the government to commit to increasing Ontario’s RN workforce by an 

additional 9,000 nurses, ensuring 70 per cent full-time employment for all nurses and expanding the 

role and scope of nurse practitioners and registered nurses. We are confident that these achievable 

targets will be met by 2015. We know these targets are achievable because much progress has been 

made to date on RNAO’s 2007-2011 platform. For example, during its first mandate, the McGuinty 

government promised it would create 8,000 new jobs for nurses - and it more than met this goal. We 

are also well on the way to reaching our objective of 70 per cent full-time for RNs. Between 2004 

and 2008, full-time employment for all RNs rose from 59.3 per cent to 65.6 per cent. The 

government also announced the opening of 11 NP-led clinics on top of the one established in 

Sudbury in 2007. And it has committed to announcing the remaining 14 before the end of its mandate 

in 2011.  

We spent a number of months advocating for changes to legislation and regulations that oversee the 

practice of registered nurses and nurse practitioners. A series of amendments to Bill 179, which were 

passed in October, allow registered nurses to dispense drugs and pave the way for nurse practitioners 

to be able to prescribe drugs openly. A key limitation that wasn’t addressed is the ability for nurse 

practitioners to admit, treat, transfer and discharge patients in in-patient settings. During Queen’s 

Park Day, Minister of Health Deb Matthews committed to beginning consultations on this issue in 

the spring. RNAO is determined to work with government, opposition parties and other stakeholders 

to secure these outcomes as they are essential to improve the public’s access to health services and 

reduce wait times. Roles for registered nurses must also be expanded. Both our previous and our 

current platforms make it clear that expanded RN roles maximize health-care resources, enhance 

access and strengthen the recruitment and retention of nurses.  

RNAO has long recognized the link between social inequalities and poor health. So has Ms.  

Matthews. We applauded her appointment as health minister because our relationship with her is 

long-standing, dating back to her days as Minister of Children and Youth Services, Minister 

Responsible for Women's Issues and her work on poverty. As a member of the 25 in 5 Network for 

Poverty Reduction, RNAO played a role in the development of Ontario’s Poverty Reduction 

Strategy. We continue to work closely with Minister Matthews to advance the nursing profession for 

the public, and to strengthen health and health care in Ontario.  

Speaking out against actions taken to change models of nursing care delivery continues to be a top 

priority for the association. In our correspondence and meetings with health-care organizations, we 

have been sharing the evidence that supports models of nursing care delivery that ensure continuity 

of care and continuity of caregiver, using RNs for the total nursing care of complex or unstable 

patients with unpredictable outcomes, and RPNs for the total nursing care of stable patients with 

predictable outcomes.  

During the past year, we released four new best practice guidelines: Ostomy Care and Management; 

Decision Support for Adults Living with Chronic Kidney Disease; Supporting Clients on Methadone 

Maintenance Treatment; and Preventing and Managing Violence in the Workplace. In addition, 

RNAO published revisions of the following guidelines: Nursing Management of Hypertension; 

Subcutaneous Administration of Insulin in Adults with Type II Diabetes; Subcutaneous 

Administration of Insulin in Adults with Type II Diabetes – French; and Nursing Care of 

Dyspnea: The 6th Vital Sign in Individuals with Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease. RNAO’s 

provincial, national and international influence on nursing practice was recognized this year with 

three prestigious awards. For our role in bringing evidence-based nursing knowledge and research to 

long-term care, we received the Minister’s Award of Excellence for Innovation. The Canadian Dental 

Association presented RNAO with its Oral Health Promotion Award for our best practice guideline 

on oral health and related implementation resources. Internationally, we received Sigma Theta Tau’s 

Practice Academe Innovation Collaboration Award for the joint RNAO/University of Ottawa 

Nursing Best Practice Research Unit and our 21 Best Practice Spotlight Organizations. We are very 

proud to be recognized as a leading organization. 

We are continuing to increase the international profile of RNAO. Last summer, members presented 

at The International Council of Nurses 24th Quadrennial Congress in Durban, South Africa. Faculty 

of Nursing and Chief Nursing Officers from all of Latin and Central America were exposed to 

RNAO’s BPG work at a research symposium and workshop in Colombia. Another presentation with 

the interdisciplinary team of CENCEC (Centre for Clinical Evaluation) in Cuba is bringing positive 

development, and we hope that all the guidelines will soon be translated into Spanish thanks to the 

government of Spain. We remain committed to advancing the nursing profession in China and 

regularly provide workshops and other forms of professional development to our colleagues there.  

 

Professional development for our members is an ongoing priority. In the past year, our Centre for 

Professional Nursing Excellence held numerous events including the 8th International Elder Care 

Conference, the Annual Nurse Practitioner Conference and the first ever Mid-Career Nurse 

Symposium, in addition to three summer institutes and leadership workshops for new nursing 

graduates. The growing number of Centre members -25- have also benefitted from customized 

workshops, consultations, action plans, focus groups and retreats. 

 

As RNAO marks its 85th year, our organization is larger, more strategic and more influential than 

ever. During the past decade alone, our membership has doubled in numbers and in the strength of 

our voice and actions, from 14,699 in 1999 to 29,082 in 2009. Our anniversary, however, isn’t the 

only milestone we’re celebrating this year. 2010 is also International Year of the Nurse. In October, 

RNAO will be holding an international conference titled Knowledge, the Power of Nursing: 

Celebrating Best Practice Guidelines and Clinical Leadership to recognize the contributions of 

clinical nursing excellence and evidence-based practice to quality care and global health outcomes.  

 

As you can see from these highlights, there is much for us to celebrate at this AGM. We can’t think 

of a more exciting time to be in nursing and the passion, intelligence and commitment of RNAO 

members is taking our profession to heights that RNAO’s original members could only dream of. 
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Matthews. We applauded her appointment as health minister because our relationship with her is 

long-standing, dating back to her days as Minister of Children and Youth Services, Minister 

Responsible for Women's Issues and her work on poverty. As a member of the 25 in 5 Network for 

Poverty Reduction, RNAO played a role in the development of Ontario’s Poverty Reduction 

Strategy. We continue to work closely with Minister Matthews to advance the nursing profession for 

the public, and to strengthen health and health care in Ontario.  

Speaking out against actions taken to change models of nursing care delivery continues to be a top 

priority for the association. In our correspondence and meetings with health-care organizations, we  
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have been sharing the evidence that supports models of nursing care delivery that ensure continuity 

of care and continuity of caregiver, using RNs for the total nursing care of complex or unstable 

patients with unpredictable outcomes, and RPNs for the total nursing care of stable patients with 

predictable outcomes.  

During the past year, we released four new best practice guidelines: Ostomy Care and Management; 

Decision Support for Adults Living with Chronic Kidney Disease; Supporting Clients on Methadone 

Maintenance Treatment; and Preventing and Managing Violence in the Workplace. In addition, 

RNAO published revisions of the following guidelines: Nursing Management of Hypertension; 

Subcutaneous Administration of Insulin in Adults with Type II Diabetes; Subcutaneous 

Administration of Insulin in Adults with Type II Diabetes – French; and Nursing Care of 

Dyspnea: The 6th Vital Sign in Individuals with Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease. RNAO’s 

provincial, national and international influence on nursing practice was recognized this year with 

three prestigious awards. For our role in bringing evidence-based nursing knowledge and research to 

long-term care, we received the Minister’s Award of Excellence for Innovation. The Canadian Dental 

Association presented RNAO with its Oral Health Promotion Award for our best practice guideline 

on oral health and related implementation resources. Internationally, we received Sigma Theta Tau’s 

Practice Academe Innovation Collaboration Award for the joint RNAO/University of Ottawa 

Nursing Best Practice Research Unit and our 21 Best Practice Spotlight Organizations. We are very 

proud to be recognized as a leading organization. 

We are continuing to increase the international profile of RNAO. Last summer, members presented 

at The International Council of Nurses 24th Quadrennial Congress in Durban, South Africa. Faculty 

of Nursing and Chief Nursing Officers from all of Latin and Central America were exposed to 

RNAO’s BPG work at a research symposium and workshop in Colombia. Another presentation with 

the interdisciplinary team of CENCEC (Centre for Clinical Evaluation) in Cuba is bringing positive 

development, and we hope that all the guidelines will soon be translated into Spanish thanks to the 

government of Spain. We remain committed to advancing the nursing profession in China and 

regularly provide workshops and other forms of professional development to our colleagues there.  

 

Professional development for our members is an ongoing priority. In the past year, our Centre for 

Professional Nursing Excellence held numerous events including the 8th International Elder Care 

Conference, the Annual Nurse Practitioner Conference and the first ever Mid-Career Nurse 

Symposium, in addition to three summer institutes and leadership workshops for new nursing 

graduates. The growing number of Centre members -25- have also benefitted from customized 

workshops, consultations, action plans, focus groups and retreats. 

 

As RNAO marks its 85th year, our organization is larger, more strategic and more influential than 

ever. During the past decade alone, our membership has doubled in numbers and in the strength of 

our voice and actions, from 14,699 in 1999 to 29,082 in 2009. Our anniversary, however, isn’t the 

only milestone we’re celebrating this year. 2010 is also International Year of the Nurse. In October, 

RNAO will be holding an international conference titled Knowledge, the Power of Nursing: 

Celebrating Best Practice Guidelines and Clinical Leadership to recognize the contributions of 

clinical nursing excellence and evidence-based practice to quality care and global health outcomes.  

 

As you can see from these highlights, there is much for us to celebrate at this AGM. We can’t think 

of a more exciting time to be in nursing and the passion, intelligence and commitment of RNAO 

members is taking our profession to heights that RNAO’s original members could only dream of. 

 

 

 

Wendy Fucile RN, BScN, MPA, CHE               Doris Grinspun, RN, MSN, PhD (c), O.ONT. 

President                                            Executive Director  
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Veronika Pulley, RNAO Member 
Rhonda Seidman-Carlson, Board Representative  
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Editorial Advisory
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committee reports

Bylaws Committee
This committee met once, and reviewed proposed changes to RNAO’s Bylaws. 

I am pleased to report that five bylaw changes are being submitted for discussion at the 2010 Annual General Meeting.   
The details of the proposed bylaw changes appear on pages 20 and 21 of this AGM Report booklet.  

I would like to thank the committee members for their commitment to the work of this committee.

Sara Lankshear, RN, PhD(c)
Chair

The Editorial Advisory Committee is comprised of several individuals who work together as a team to ensure that Registered 
Nurse Journal maintains its reputation as a high-quality publication. The committee met by teleconference on four occasions 
during the reporting period. The chairs, with support from the Communications Department, arranged for the teleconferences 
to be held shortly after the publication date of each edition. One print journalist provided feedback through a “reporter’s lens.” 
The nursing members of the committee and the nursing student provided feedback based on their nursing knowledge and 
practice. This multi-focus approach provides the staff with several perspectives and ensures that the editorial content of the 
journal is critiqued from different points of view and reflects the work of RNAO’s various activities as they pertain to the ENDs.
 
It is our pleasure to serve as co-chairs of this committee and we wish to thank all members for their work and continued 
involvement in RNAO’s flagship publication. The committee will continue its good work in 2010. 

Nancy Purdy, RN, PhD(c)
and Ruth Schofield, BScN, MSc(T)
Co-Chairs

The association reported positive financial results for the year ending October 31, 2009 in all funds. Total net revenue from all 
RNAO funds was $883,912 compared to $1,012,563 in 2008. The General fund reported net revenue of $226,562 compared  
to $402,953 in 2008.  Membership and Centre revenue increased, however higher CNA fees and lower recoveries on  
administrative and occupancy expenses resulted in lower overall net revenue for 2009. The LAP fund reported net revenue of  
$638,246, compared to $594,788 in 2008, attributable to higher LAP enrollment and investment returns on long-term bonds.  
The total surplus from all funds now stands at $13,367,215 as of October 31, 2009.  Special projects related to nursing and 
health-care initiatives from various Ontario government ministries and other stakeholders have further enhanced the depth and 
breadth of association activities and continue to be a positive contribution to association results. 

The committee reviews financial results and operating activity using a risk-based model and no areas of concern were raised 
during the year.  At year end the committee spent considerable time reviewing the expanded notes to financial statements, 
which are new Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants Handbook reporting requirements. I would like to thank all  
Finance Committee members for their work and Home Office staff for their expert advice and support.  

Julie Scott, RN, BA, MBA
Chair

Interest Groups Chairs Committee 

Editorial Advisory Committee

Finance Committee 

Membership Recruitment and Retention Committee 
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committee reports

Interest Groups Chairs Committee 
In the winter of 2009, a survey was conducted with IG Chairs. The response rate was 51 per cent.  Results suggested that 
despite challenges related to educational needs, resources, scope of practice and recognition, Interest Groups actively  
advanced their specialties through their passion, leadership and collaboration with Home Office, partnerships, and various 
continuing education activities.  Key implications included the advancement of their specialties, and collaboration with each 
other and Home Office.

The IG Chairs received Board highlights from the June meeting and they were also invited to submit agenda items for the IG 
Chairs meeting.  In 2009, Ontario Chapter, American Society of Plastic Surgical Nurses (OCASPSN) dissolved as an IG and we 
welcomed the formation of the Palliative Care Nurses Interest Group (PCNIG) in January 2010. 

The IG Chairs met twice in September 2009 and January 2010. The purpose of the IG meetings is to provide a structure for 
communication and collaboration among Interest Groups and between Interest Groups, the RNAO Board of Directors and 
Home Office, including access to Interest Group expertise in a broad range of specialty areas.

To achieve this purpose, the IG Chairs learned about the activities of four Interest Groups: Men In Nursing Interest Group 
(MINIG), Gerontological Nursing Association (GNA), Community Health Nurses Initiatives Group (CHNIG) and Provincial Nurse 
Educators Interest Group (PNEIG). These presentations gave the IGs greater insight into the activities of these IG activities 
and opportunities to collaborate. IG Chairs also heard from the RNAO Board Member-at-Large (MAL) representatives for MAL 
Nursing Practice, Sheryl Bernard; MAL Nursing Education, Kathleen White-Williams; and MAL Nursing Research, Nancy Purdy,  
which assisted them to expand their understanding of these roles in relationship to IGs.  Home office staff likewise kept us 
current with their activities and resources available to support the work of IGs. Louis-Charles Lavallée, Director of Information 
Management and Technology (IM&T) shared the current work on the website development and IT resources available, Karen 
Ellis-Scharfenberg, Associate Director, Centre for Professional Nursing Excellence, invited IGs to become involved with the 
2010 Nightingale Conference, and Marion Zych, Director of Communications, discussed her role in communications. 

In September a key practice issue identified was e-health documentation and clinical notes, and the subject of liability. 
Consequently, Lynn Tkac from Ontario Nursing Informatics Group (ONIG) was invited and gave an informative presentation 
addressing this issue, in January. 

The last activity in the full agenda of both meetings was an opportunity for a lively network discussion among Interest 
Groups to build on opportunities for collaboration and to learn from each other.

Ruth Schofield, BScN, MSc(T)
Chair

This committee oversees RNAO’s recruitment and retention of members to our association to help reach our goal of “Every 
RN a Member.”  We’re making progress. At the close of the membership year, membership reached 29,082, doubling the size 
of the association over the past 10 years. 

The work of the committee includes choosing recognition awards recipients, which is an honour, and overseeing the work of 
325 workplace liaisons, as well as other recruitment efforts.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all current and past committee members for their time, insight and  
contributions to the association.

Claudine Bennett, RN, BScN
Chair

Membership Recruitment and Retention Committee 
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Nursing Education Committee 
The purpose of our committee is to identify and monitor educational initiatives and/or trends within the context of the 
ever changing environment in keeping with the Mission Statement and ENDs of RNAO. The committee is also to make  
recommendations to the RNAO Board related to nursing. 

The Education Committee convened for business in June, September and November 2009, and March 2010. The joint  
committees (Nursing and Research) met in July, October, and December 2009 and February 2010. 

The committee has been working very hard to gain insight about the nursing educational needs in Ontario. We have  
identified the key areas of need for nursing education as strategic direction and role in engaging inter-professional education, 
interdisciplinary practice, interdisciplinary teams, modern nursing career framework, preceptor resources, entry to practice 
for nursing students, education funding, health-care administration advocacy, identifying skills and knowledge that nurses 
need in today’s practice environment.

We have also identified that more support needs to be given to nursing students to pursue graduate school, which includes 
increasing funding for them at the Master’s and PhD level. 

A major undertaking this past year is a project collaboratively lead by the MAL Chairs for Education and Research, and their 
respective committees. The project involves examining current research funding in Ontario. A survey was designed and  
distributed to all registered nurses in the fall 2009. The findings of this survey and an environmental scan will inform a report  
prepared for the Policy and Research Department of RNAO for their ongoing advocacy work with regard to this important topic. 

We remain strongly committed to collaborating with RNAO staff, members and student members to develop ways of  
encouraging and supporting the nurses and students in nursing. Our future profession depends on us getting this right.

Kathleen White-Williams, RN, MN, PhD(c)
Chair

The Nursing Practice Committee (NPC) continues to meet quarterly with additional adhoc meetings as required. We  
have had some unplanned turnover to our membership due to representatives changing jobs, relocating and students 
graduating but have been fortunate to very quickly recruit for those vacancies.  To date, our membership is well represented 
with a dedicated and enthusiastic group of cross-sectoral representatives who are committed to strengthening the position 
of registered nurses by profiling the broad scope of nursing practice.

Action/Outcomes
 l The Terms of Reference (TOR) has been discussed at length and revised to ensure that it reflects an active committee  
  that addresses emerging practice issues among Interest Groups and membership at large. The proposed  
  amendments will be brought to the BOD for approval in April 2010.

 l In collaboration with Head Office, the committee has developed criteria for the review development and process for  
  the practice pages in addition to identifying the appropriate resources to support the practice pages.

 l The committee has made it a priority to establish a close alliance with RNAO Member Groups. (ie. Education,  
  Research and Policy Committee and Interest Groups). 
 
 l In November 2009 we had a face-to-face meeting at Home Office which was very productive, interactive and gave 
  the various/new committee members an opportunity to put faces to the names.  We were very quickly able to  
  re-align what was identified as a disconnect between the original TOR and the work of the committee. 

 l The committee reviewed the results of the survey conducted by the Interest Groups which clearly identified the 
  need for NPC to support the nurses with the emerging issues in their practice. It was agreed that this would be a part  
  of the direction of the committee as we focus on the scope of nursing practice.

Nursing Practice Committee Report 

Nursing Research Committee 

Policy Analysis and Development Committee
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Nursing Research Committee 
The mandate of the Nursing Research Committee is to promote nursing research in Ontario by engaging in awareness and  
advocacy activities. To that end, an environmental scan to identify the current state of nursing research in Ontario was  
conducted to inform the strategic direction for the work of this committee for the upcoming term(s). Four key areas of concern 
were used to structure the scan: funding, human resources for nursing research, valuing/support for nursing research, and 
research models/infrastructure. The annotated bibliography and reference list developed for the environmental scan will be 
available in the members-only section of the NRIG and PNEIG websites. Data collected for the scan were analyzed to identify 
key strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats (SWOT analysis) to nursing research from which recommendations for  
action are currently being determined. The results have been submitted to the Board, committees and staff to facilitate  
decision-making regarding advocacy and policy initiatives to support nursing research as one of the five domains of nursing. 
 
While the environmental scan was underway, significant changes to federal funding sources were made that directly  
affected nurses involved in research across the province. In August, an online survey of nursing research activity in Ontario was  
implemented to obtain the opinions of nurses involved in research regarding the actual and potential impact of the  
reductions in CIHR, SSHRC and CNF funding. The Nursing Research and Nursing Education committees of the RNAO Board 
engaged the input and support of both NRIG and PNEIG executive members in the development and analysis of this  
survey. The survey included demographic data, research activity and roles as well as projected impacts of funding changes. 
Between August 11 and September 14, there were 92 nurse researchers in academia, 157 nurses in clinical practice settings 
and 131 students (aspiring and current graduate students) who participated. The final report of the survey results will be  
integrated with the environmental scan and presented at the Annual General Meeting of NRIG in April. A communication 
plan to disseminate the report will be implemented thereafter.

We are proud of the collaboration between the Research and Education Committees of the Board, along with NRIG and 
PNEIG who have contributed to these initiatives. RNAO supported the hiring of a Research Assistant to enable the completion 
of this project, provided policy expertise and leadership through Rob Milling, Kim Jarvi and Kayla Scott, and developed the 
first in-house online survey in consultation with Louis-Charles Lavallée and his team. 

I would like to take this opportunity recognize the expert members of this committee who have enthusiastically participated 
in this work.  

Nancy Purdy, RN, PhD(c)
Chair

Thanks to all the committee members for their active participation and contribution to the strategic direction of the 
committee. An extended thanks to the Home Office staff members who go above and beyond to support the committee and  
also a special thank you to the NSO for making extra efforts to ensure that we always have student representation at 
the table.

Sheryl Bernard, RN, BScN, MN(c), CHE
Chair

Policy Analysis and Development Committee
This committee has continued to influence, inform and support the incredible work of the policy staff at RNAO in speaking out 
for health and speaking out for nursing. The committee has focused its energy and activity on two main priority issues in the 
past year: housing and poverty. 

On June 2, 2009, I had the privilege of presenting to the House of Commons Standing Committee on the Federal Contribution 
to Reducing Poverty in Canada. On July 9, 2009, several members of the committee attended “Everyone Deserves a Home: An 
Evening on Advocacy for an Affordable Housing Strategy” with special guest speakers Cathy Crowe and Megan Currie. The 
event, hosted by RNAO, was extremely well organized and attended. This inspirational event helped to prepare members  
of the committee to participate in the Provincial Housing Consultations sessions. The Policy Analysis and Development  
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Provincial Resolutions  Committee

Committee met July 20, 2009 to do further preparations on engaging both federal and provincial governments.  
On July 21, I had the opportunity to represent RNAO at one of the Provincial Housing Consultations sessions in Scarborough.  
We are hopeful that the MPPs in attendance heard a resounding message in support of developing and implementing a 
client-based affordable housing strategy.

On October 5, 2009, Doris Grinspun and I presented verbal and written submissions to the Ontario Legislature’s Standing  
Committee on Social Policy for Bill 179. After months (perhaps even years!) of lobbying by numerous people, The  
Regulated Health Professions Statute Law Amendment Act (2009) passed third reading unanimously in the Ontario  
Legislature. The leadership of RNAO should be congratulated on shaping this significant piece of legislation. What  
an accomplishment!

Congratulations also go out to the Hamilton Chapter of RNAO for organizing a provocative and inspiring forum on  
November 16. I participated as one of four panellists under the banner of “Dignity for All: A Community Meeting on  
Addressing Poverty in Hamilton Ontario.”  In December, RNAO made a submission on “Ontario’s Long-Term Affordable Housing 
Strategy: Housing is a Human Right and a Determinant of Health” to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing. I urge all 
members to continue to advocate for the implementation of the recommendations set out in this report.

The committee had its most recent meeting following the fantastic 11th Annual RNAO Day at Queen’s Park on January 28,  
2010. Creating Vibrant Communities: RNAO’s Challenge to Ontario’s Political Parties was presented to approximately  
58 MPPs and/or their senior staff, including 70 percent of the provincial cabinet! Well done!

It has been my honour to serve RNAO members as the Member-at-Large, Socio-Political Affairs, for the past 2 years. Many  
thanks to the dedicated committee members and the policy staff of RNAO. Under the tireless leadership of the Executive  
Director and the Board of Directors, RNAO has helped to shape policies that underscore the importance of improving the  
social and environmental determinants of health and health-care delivery. 

Theresa Agnew, RN(EC), BA(SDS), BScN, PHC-NP
Chair

Twelve resolutions were received from members by the deadline 1700 hours (5:00pm) on December 14, 2009. Three  
other resolutions were received after the deadline, and discussed by the committee under New Business (NB). All three NB 
resolutions are being brought forward by the committee for discussion under NB.

The Provincial Resolutions Committee met four times to discuss all resolutions submitted. One of the resolutions submitted 
by a student associate was unanimously rejected by the committee on the basis that this resolution was not supported or 
endorsed by an RNAO member. One resolution submitted by a member was unanimously rejected by the committee on the 
basis that it was not materially different from the resolution submitted in previous years, and is also in conflict with the law. 
Three resolutions submitted by members were withdrawn by the submitters. 

A total of seven resolutions, submitted by the deadline, are being brought forward for discussion and voting at the Annual 
General Meeting. The details of these resolutions appear on pages 16-19 of this AGM Report booklet. 

Members are reminded that resolutions can be submitted at ANY point during a year, up to the deadline date. If  
resolutions are submitted well ahead of the deadline date, the committee will review submissions and respond by email, giving  
submitters more time to be prepared prior to the deadline.

This is my last year on the committee, leaving a vacant committee position to be filled. I would like to recognize my fellow 
committee members for their commitment to the work of this committee, the guidance and counsel of RNAO Executive  
Office, who work on behalf of all members to have a voice through their resolution and, finally, I would like to acknowledge 
and thank the members of the association who developed and sponsored these important resolutions. 

Karen Fisher, RN, BScN, CHPCN, CCHN
Chair
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2010 ticket of nominations

The following is the Ticket of Nominations as per RNAO Bylaw 5.07(3). The deadline for the first Call for Nominations was 
Monday, December 14, 2009 at 1700 hours (5:00pm) [Eastern].

The following nominations were received prior to the deadline:

Interest Groups Representative  Ruth Schofield, BScN, MSc(T)

Member-at-Large, Nursing Administration  Linda MacLeod, RN, BScN, MHA

Member-at-Large, Nursing Education  H. Kathleen White-Williams, RN, MN, PhD(c)

Member-at-Large, Nursing Practice  Sheryl Bernard, RN, BScN, MN(c), CHE

Member-at-Large, Nursing Research  Raquel Meyer, RN, PhD(c)
 Karen L. Ray, RN, MSc

Member-at-Large, Socio-Political Affairs  Maureen Cava, BScN, MN, FCCHSE

Member – Bylaws Committee (3 vacancies) Lisa High, RN, BScN, MScN
 Veronika Pulley, RN, BScN, OHN, BA

No nominations were received prior to the deadline for:

Member – Bylaws Committee (one vacancy)

Member – Provincial Nominations Committee  (one vacancy)

Member – Provincial Resolutions Committee  (one vacancy)

Therefore, in accordance with RNAO Bylaw 5.08(1), a second Call for Nominations was issued. The deadline for this  
second Call for Nominations was Wednesday, January 6, 2010 at 1700 hours (5:00pm) [Eastern].

Following the second Call for Nominations, the slate of candidates was completed as follows:

Member – Bylaws Committee  Una Ferguson, RN, GNC(C), CPMHN(C)

Member – Provincial Nominations Committee  Mary Ferguson-Paré, RN, PhD, CHE
 

Respectfully submitted to RNAO Board of Directors,

Mary Ferguson-Paré, RN, PhD, CHE
Chair, Provincial Nominations Committee
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Prof. Ruth Schofield, BScN, MSc(T)

Interest Groups Representative

Prof. Schofield joined the McMaster University School of Nursing as a Preceptor in 1982 and then  
became an Assistant Clinical Professor. She is currently an Assistant Professor and teaches in the  
McMaster Faculty of Medicine.  Prof. Schofield is a Past-President of Community Health Nurses  
Initiatives Group  (CHNIG) with RNAO, was the Co-Chair of the 1st and 2nd National Community Health 

Nurses Conference Steering Committee, and past member of the Ontario Public Health Association Board of Directors.  Prof.  
Schofield worked over 23 years in public health nursing in various positions and programs. She has a Bachelor of Science  
in Nursing and a Master of Science of Teaching from McMaster University. Her areas of research are in mental health and 
housing, community health nursing, and child and family health.  

Linda MacLeod, RN, BScN, MHA    

Member-at-Large, Nursing Administration

My career in acute care has spanned more than 25 years in three provinces: British Columbia (6 years), 
Ontario (the majority of time) and Nova Scotia (5 years). I have recently moved from a Vice President  
Patient Care Services and Chief Nursing Officer to Program Developer for residential Hospice in Grey 
Bruce.  I obtained my BScN and MHA during my career. 

My clinical experience was 15 years in critical care staff nursing (CCU, ICU, Mixed and Open Heart). During those years I was 
active in my professional associations. It was important to me to make sure the voice of the clinical nurse was represented in 
hospital committees and any professional forum.  

I have been a Charge Nurse, Nurse Manager, Care Map Coordinator, Director of Nursing, and Director/VP of Patient Care in  
hospitals ranging from 25 beds to 200 beds, including two sites (concurrently) in a multi-site organization.  I have experienced 
the pain of more than one hospital “restructuring” as well as “regionalization” in two provinces. Since the formation of the LHINs, 
I have been involved in several working groups.  I am now in a community-based position which gives me exposure to another 
perspective on nursing and health care.

As a nurse, I am concerned about the looming shortage of nurses combined with the suggestion that fewer nurses and 
more health-care workers are safe for patients.  I know we need to develop new staffing and care models.  I want to devote 
significant energy to RNAO because  I believe our professional organization must actively support nurses in this “zero balance”  
environment as patient acuity and workload continue to grow.
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H. Kathleen White-Williams, RN, MN, PhD(c)

Member-at-Large, Nursing Education

Education and Experience
I was privileged to serve my first term on the Board of Directors, during which I partnered with the MAL 
Nursing Research and our respective committees (PNEIG and NRIG), to conduct an environmental scan 
to examine nursing research funding in Ontario.

I am a Professor in the UNB-Humber Collaborative Bachelor of Nursing Program, Humber ITAL. I serve the practice community 
as an advisory committee member (education focus) for a research project based at UHN/University of Toronto. I graduated 
from the Owen Sound Regional School of Nursing and hold a BScN from Ryerson University; an MN from the University of  
Toronto; and am currently a PhD candidate in the Faculty of Nursing, University of Alberta. My dissertation is education,  
focused on the process by which nursing students connect with their patients. My professional memberships include the CNO  
(Ontario), CARNA (Alberta), CNA, and Sigma Theta Tau. 

Philosophy
I believe that knowledge is embedded in experience. Moreover, I am deeply concerned about: the shortage, preparation and 
funding for the Nursing Professoriate; the need for curricula to genuinely reflect the needs and values of society; the need 
for a philosophical and theoretical foundation in nursing education practicums; health and nursing policy as it relates to all 
members of the health-care team. I view my role as a facilitator and partner in the teaching/learning process, and as creating 
the milieu for experiential learning. I commit to continuing to work in partnership with RNAO members and stakeholders to 
strengthen nursing education capacity and quality.

Sheryl Bernard, RN, BScn, MN(c), CHE

Member-at-Large, Nursing Practice

Sheryl has over 13 years experience in nursing. She currently works in the role of Administrative  
Director in Geriatric Psychiatry, Neuropsychiatry Rehabilitation and Centralized Scheduling and Staffing 
at Ontario Shores Centre for Mental Health Sciences. She has assumed the role of Corporate Project  
Lead in support of the development of Organization Clinical Informatics. 

Sheryl is a candidate for Master’s in Nursing and has completed her Baccalaureate in Health Sciences Nursing at Charles Sturt  
University. She is a graduate of the Dorothy Wylie Nursing Leadership Institute and a Certified Health Executive.  
Her professional affiliations continue to provide her with ongoing growth and development as a leader in health care as  
demonstrated by her various certifications in management, leadership training, and as a member of the Academy of  
Canadian Executive Nurses.

Sheryl is an active member of the RNAO Board of Directors in the current role of Member-at-Large Nursing Practice, Chair of 
the provincial Nursing Practice Committee, member of the Policy Analysis and Development Committee, Editorial Advisory 
Committee and member of the Mental Health Nurses Interest Group.  

Sheryl demonstrates her commitment to nursing, capacity building and dedication to the professional development of  
others by providing mentorship to several clinical leaders. She is a skilled administrator and change agent who is recognized 
for leadership, passion and advocacy on behalf of health-care practitioners and patients.
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Raquel Meyer, RN, PhD(c)

RNAO Member-at-Large, Nursing Research

Research is a powerful tool to support nurses in all settings, sectors and domains of nursing. I am 
deeply committed to advancing RNAO’s efforts to sustain and strengthen nursing and our health-care  
system through timely research and the dissemination of research results that are practical and relevant to  
clinicians and decision-makers.

Research can assist us in articulating the value and improving the quality of nursing care and services. Raquel Meyer is an 
enthusiastic and experienced proponent for the relevance of nursing research to clinical practice, nursing administration and 
policy development. Her knowledge and commitment to nursing research is rooted in her career path, including more than 
10 years at the University of Toronto Nursing Health Services Research Unit where she is now an affiliate scientist. Raquel has 
demonstrated expertise in nursing work, human resources and management through her co-investigator role on studies, 
presentations and publications.

Currently a Lecturer at the Lawrence S. Bloomberg Faculty of Nursing, Raquel holds an Ontario Nursing Early Career Research 
Award. A life-long RNAO member, Raquel is also a long-time member of the Nursing Research Interest Group. She has interned 
for the Dorothy Wylie Nursing Leadership Institute and served on committees for the Canadian Health Services Research 
Foundation. She provided leadership for the research component of the Provincial Nursing Work Steering Committee. Through 
these experiences, Raquel has developed her leadership style, media skills and political acumen which she uses to foster 
policy-research linkages that engage decision-makers in evidence-informed dialogue.
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Karen L. Ray, RN, MSc

Member-at-Large, Nursing Research

Karen Ray is a registered nurse with more than 30 years of experience, complemented by advanced  
educational preparation and expertise in research and nursing education.

Throughout her career, Karen has worked in various nursing roles – from clinical practice and education, 
to administration and research. In her current position as Research Manager at Saint Elizabeth Health 

Care (SEHC), Karen provides leadership, direction and support in the creation, dissemination, exchange and management of  
knowledge through program evaluation, participation in research activities and the implementation of evidence into practice and 
decision-making. She firmly believes that it is “a phenomenal experience to be in a position to see research come alive.”

Karen holds a Master’s of Science in Nursing from the University of Toronto and has completed education in research  
measurement, biomedical statistics and knowledge transfer. In 2002-03, she completed a CHRSF Chair Research Apprenticeship 
with the Nursing Research Unit at University of Toronto, and continues to be involved in a plethora of research and evaluation 
activities.

Karen has been a key leader in enabling and operationalizing SEHC’s activities as an RNAO Best Practice Spotlight Organization, 
and has completed a BPG Implementation Fellowship in Sustaining Best Practice Guidelines. She also played an instrumental 
role in SEHC’s partnership with Queen’s Joanna Briggs Collaboration to establish the first Evidence Translation Group in North 
America.

Karen would be a true asset to the RNAO Board, bringing her passion, knowledge and experience in integrating research into 
professional practice to advance nursing excellence at all levels of care.
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Maureen Cava , BScN, MN, FCCHSE B.Sc.N., M.Sc(T).

Member-at-Large, Socio-Political Affairs

I am currently the Manager of Professional Practice for Toronto Public Health. I have been in this  
position since February 1999 following the amalgamation of the greater Toronto area’s six health units 
into Toronto Public Health. I did my undergraduate degree in nursing at Lakehead University and my 
graduate degree in nursing at D’Youville College in Buffalo, New York. I am an active member of two 

Boards of Directors, the Registered Nurses Foundation of Ontario and the GTA Chapter of the Canadian Council of Health  
Services Executives. 

Statement of Philosophy
I have a keen interest in developing a strong public health infrastructure rooted in the social determinants of health. I  
believe that nurses contribute to effective public health policy through knowledgeable and effective advocacy and through  
strategic partnerships. Fostering a culture of inquiry reflected in the principles of diversity, access, equity, research, evaluation,  
professional practice and access to information is the foundation on which my practice is based. Linking with practitioners,  
academics, and other system stakeholders is of critical importance as a leader in the field of public health. Engaging in  
collaborative work across sectors is extremely important,  and I have worked diligently to maintain these strong connections 
and value the learning and opportunities they have offered. I am keen to bring my experience, values and beliefs to service on 
the RNAO Board, whereby I can strengthen and advance the capacity of members to engage in an evidence-informed culture 
of learning, collaboration, leadership and knowledge exchange for public health in Canada.  

Una Ferguson, RN, GNC(C), CPMHN(C)    

Member — Bylaws Committee

Una Ferguson is presently working part time as a staff nurse on a Psycho-Geriatric floor at the Royal  
Ottawa Mental Health Center in Ottawa. Prior to this position she worked in a continuing complex 
care environment for 17 years full time at St. Vincent’s Hospital until her retirement in 2004. There she  
completed an RNAO fellowship and her CNA certifications in Mental Health and Gerontology. Recently, 

Una participated on the panel for the Best Practice Guideline on Oral Health.

Raised in Northern Ontario, Una has three children and three grandchildren, two of whom she cares for during the week. 
Una graduated from the Ontario Hospital School of Nursing in Kingston Ontario in 1968. She has been on the executive 
of Region 10 since 2000 as Political Action ENO and is part of the executive of the local Gerontological Nursing Association  
(Political Action ENO). Una is also part of the group helping to re-establish the Mental Health Nursing Interest Group in Ottawa.  
She is Membership ENO for Staff Nurse Interest Group. Una has served one term on the Bylaws Committee and looks  
forward to the knowledge she will gain in the next two years.
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Lisa A. High, RN, BScN, MScN    

Member — Bylaws Committee

I bring an extensive work history and experiences in nursing: frontline nursing, health-care  
management both at the frontline and middle levels, research and education. I can offer RNAO an  
accomplished nursing professional who is flexible, energetic and dedicated. My comprehensive  
experiences and leadership abilities have given me the opportunity to build strong working  

relationships to promote the development and maintenance of interdisciplinary networks within community groups,  
external agencies, and within organizations.

I have played key roles in identifying, planning, facilitating and evaluating change associated with building and shaping 
health-care teams and practice. Throughout my career, my strong analytical ability coupled with my excellent interpersonal 
and communication skills allow me to work effectively in team environments or independently.

I believe that with my work experiences coupled with my interpersonal, communication and consensus building skills and 
leadership abilities, I could contribute positively to the Bylaws Committee. My contribution to this committee would include 
critical analysis capabilities, open thinker, abilities to engage in collaborative relationships and team building. I am very  
excited about this opportunity and look forward to meeting the responsibilities and fulfilling the duties required. 

Veronika Pulley, RN, BScN, OHN, BA    

Member — Bylaws Committee

I have been a registered nurse since 1975, graduating from St. Clair College in Windsor, Ontario.  
I have been an employee of Windsor Regional Hospital over 30 years. My current position is Blood 
Conservation Program Coordinator for the last six years. I had worked as a labour and delivery nurse at 
Windsor Regional for over 21 years prior to this position. I also taught nursing through St. Clair College 

for five semesters in the early 1990’s and have worked in the U.S. on a part-time contingent basis.

I completed my Bachelor of Science in Nursing, graduating in 1997, along with obtaining my Occupational Health Nurse 
Diploma in June of 2008.  

I have been a member of the RNAO for many years and find this an outstanding organization representing the nursing  
profession. I am proud to be an active member and to participate on this important board committee.
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Dr. Mary Ferguson-Paré, RN, PhD, CHE

Member — Provincial Nominations Committee

Dr. Ferguson-Paré is Vice-President, Professional Affairs and Chief Nurse Executive at University Health 
Network, which comprises Toronto General, Toronto Western and Princess Margaret Hospitals. She 
is an Associate Professor at the University of Toronto, Faculty of Nursing. Her previous experience  
includes progressive senior nursing management and executive positions in both the acute care and  

long-term care sectors; nursing education; and institutional and community nursing experience in Psychiatry, Addictions  
Therapy, Victorian Order of Nurses, Family Practice and Student Health.

Dr. Ferguson-Paré has focused her professional and academic activities on organization and management development within 
health care and the development of leaders who promote autonomous professional practice and a client-centred approach 
to service.  During the SARS outbreak, Dr. Ferguson-Paré served as a member of the Clinical Advisory Team for the Ministry  
of Health and Long-Term Care.  Later, she was appointed to the National Advisory Committee on SARS and Public Health.   
Recently, she tabled a report and recommendations on innovation in nursing service delivery, improving the patient  
experience and outcome measurement based on her sabbatical learning derived from a journey through Scandinavia,  
Europe, Ireland and the United Kingdom.

Dr. Ferguson-Paré is an RNAO past-president and is the recipient of the Distinguished Alumni Award, University of Toronto  
Faculty of Nursing, the Award of Excellence in Nursing Leadership, Ontario Hospital Association and the National Nursing  
Leadership Award, Canadian College of Healthcare Executives.
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proposed resolutions 2010

 Resolution # 1
Submitted by Kimberley English, RN, Durham-Northumberland Chapter, on behalf of 4th Year Trent University Nursing  
Students:  Yasmin Snippe, Allison Parker, Cheryl Prinzen, Nicola Doherty (all RNAO Undergraduate Nursing Student Associates)
 
 WHEREAS medications are an important component of health care, but their unsafe disposal is contaminating the
 environment and contributing to detrimental long term effects including, but not limited to, the contamination of
 drinking water and the production of antibiotic resistant microorganisms; and

 WHEREAS it is recognized that the physical environment is a determinant of health, and the contamination of the
 air, water, food and soil have adverse health effects and can significantly influence the well being of a population;
 and  
 
 WHEREAS nurses influence public awareness surrounding the safe disposal of prescription and over-the-counter 
 medications;

 THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the RNAO and its members collaborate with pharmacists and other healthcare 
 providers to actively promote the safe disposal of pharmaceuticals.

 Resolution # 2
Submitted by Daniel Ball, RN, Co-President, Men in Nursing Interest Group

 WHEREAS nursing continues to be faced with significant shortages, and without intervention, Canada is projected 
 to be short almost 60,000 full-time equivalent RNs by 2022 (CNA, 2009); and

 WHEREAS the presence of men in the ranks of Canadian Registered Nurses has developed to and remains less than  
 6 per cent (CIHI, 2009); and

 WHEREAS the traditional awareness about nursing and nurses may not reflect the reality and the career potentials, 
 particularly for men; 

 THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the RNAO, in collaboration with its Men In Nursing Group, actively advance 
 efforts in the public media, forums and educational institutions, which would promote nursing as a viable and  
 attractive career choice for men.

 Resolution # 3
Submitted by Carolyn Davies, RN and Elizabeth Battle Haugh, RN, Essex Chapter

 WHEREAS the College of Nurses of Ontario’s (CNO) Standard on Professional Relationships (page 12, Professional 
 Standards revised 2002) indicates that “professional relationships are based on trust and respect and result in 
 improved client care” and that collegial relationships in an environment that fosters trust and respect among all  
 health care disciplines; and
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 WHEREAS the (CNO) Practice Guideline on Conflict Prevention and Management states that poor relationships 
 among members of the health-care team negatively affect the delivery of care, e.g. horizontal violence negatively 
 impacts on client care, “workplace bullying can erode nurse’s confidence and compromise her/his ability to foster 
 therapeutic relationships with clients” (page 5); and

 WHEREAS RNAO’s Best Practice Guideline on Preventing and Managing Violence in the Workplace recommends 
 that Regulatory bodies addresses violence in the workplace; and 
 
 WHEREAS the Disciplinary process of the CNO addresses both specific and general deterrence of unprofessional  
 conduct; 
 
 THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that RNAO petition CNO to ensure that reports to CNO of nurses displaying  
 workplace violence in any form be investigated fully and, where warranted, referred to the Discipline Committee  
 as behaviour that is disgraceful, dishonorable and unprofessional.

 Resolution # 4
Submitted by Susan McIntyre, RN, on behalf of Halton Chapter and with support from the Pediatric Nurse Interest Group (PedNIG) 
and Community Health Nurses’ Initiative Group (CHNIG)

 WHEREAS care givers are often frustrated by an infant’s persistent crying (especially in the so-called “Period of 
 Purple Crying”) that often leads to the violent shaking of the infant and or other forms of abuse; and 

 WHEREAS this shaking can result in non-accidental head trauma (Shaken Baby Syndrome), resulting in prolonged 
 and sometimes complicated hospitalization followed by profound and often permanent neurological injury, or 
 death; and 

 WHEREAS there exists an evidence-based preventative educational program “The Period of Purple Crying®”, which 
 has been successfully implemented in many locations across Canada, including all of British Columbia,  
 Southwestern Ontario, as well as many states in the United States; 

 THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that RNAO collaborate with all relevant sectors of the health-care system to promote 
 and implement “The Period of Purple Crying®” program in all areas of Ontario.

 Resolution # 5
Submitted by Nurse Practitioners’ Association of Ontario (NPAO)

 WHEREAS there is a strong correlation between tobacco use and socio-economic status, especially among the
 unemployed and those with little or no education; and
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 WHEREAS smoking is a significant contributing factor in the rate of chronic diseases such as heart and lung 
 disease, cancer and gum problems and ultimately in the death of thousands of Ontarians annually; and

 WHEREAS smoking cessation aids have been proven to increase a smoker’s chance of quitting; and

 WHEREAS Ontario’s public drug plans, which cover the cost of medications and related services for over 2.8 million 
 of the most vulnerable people in our province, do not cover the cost of smoking cessation aids;

 THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT RNAO lobby the provincial government to include all smoking cessation 
 aids on the provincial drug formulary under Ontario’s drug benefit programs.

 Resolution # 6
Submitted by Kristine Clark, RN, Middlesex-Elgin Chapter

 WHEREAS Canadian nursing students are failing test questions related to patients over 80 years old on their  
 registration exams (CNA, 2006); and

 WHEREAS seniors utilize up to 75 per cent of our health-care services, including acute, chronic, and primary care   
 and they are also three times more likely to be readmitted to acute care as their younger counterparts due to the   
 complexity of their health-care needs (Statistics Canada, 2006); and

 WHEREAS current nursing education curricula does not have specific competencies related to gerontology 
 (Pringle, 2009, McCleary, McGilton, Boscart, & Oudshoorn, 2009);

 THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the RNAO advocate to the Ministry of Universities, Colleges, and Training, as
  well as the Council of Ontario University Programs in Nursing (COUPN) to include specific competencies related 
 to gerontology at both the introductory and advanced levels of nursing programs. 

 Resolution # 7
Submitted by Carmen Rodrigue, RN, President, Clinical Nurse Specialist Interest Group (CNSIG)

 WHEREAS the Clinical Nurse Specialist (CNS) role has been in existence in Ontario since the 1960s and the CNS 
 currently works in an advanced nursing practice role; and

 WHEREAS indicated by the College of Nurses of Ontario (CNO) and the Canadian Nurses Association (CNA), the 
 CNS is required to have a graduate degree in nursing, having completed a Master in nursing or a doctorate in 
 nursing with a clinical nursing specialty; and 
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 WHEREAS the CNS provides expert input into the care of complex and/or vulnerable populations and/or 
 challenging clinical situations and that the CNS contributes to the improvement of patient outcomes and 
 decrease or reduction of mortality and morbidity;  

 THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that RNAO include the CNS in the staff mix being presented to health-care 
 organizations and the government of Ontario and promote the CNS as part of the solution in the management of   
 the care of complex and/or vulnerable populations in the health-care system; and

 THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that RNAO promote the significant contributions of the CNS as an 
 Advanced Practice Nurse (APN) in the health-care system of Ontario and beyond.
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Bylaw # Current Bylaws Proposed Change Rationale

4.19 

New 
Sub-
Clause  
(4)

4.19  DUTIES OF DIRECTORS 4.19(4)  maintain unity of the  
Association while serving the interests of 
members; and

Current 4.19(4) then becomes 4.19(5)

Congruence with the expectation stated 
in bylaw 7.01 FUNCTIONS OF INTEREST 
GROUPS and specifically, sub-clause (2) 

Proposed Bylaw Change #1

Bylaw # Current Bylaws Proposed Change Rationale

5.09 (6)

New 
Sub-
Clause  
(f)

5.09  PROVINCIAL 
RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE

5.09(6)  The members of the 
provincial resolutions  
committee shall,

5.09(6)(a) through (e) remain unchanged

5.09(6)(f)  have power to reject a  
resolution that the Association already  
considered at the previous general meeting;

Present 5.09(6)(f) then becomes 5.09(6)(g)

Congruence with the Provincial  
Resolutions Committee Terms of  
Reference

Proposed Bylaw Change #2

Bylaw # Current Bylaws Proposed Change Rationale

6.05 (1)

New 
Sub-
Clause  
(l)

6.05 RESPONSIBLE PERSONS

6.05(1)(a) through (k) remain unchanged

6.05(1)(l)   In the event the most 
responsible person is unable or unwilling to 
complete their term, they must provide thirty 
(30) days’ notice, in writing, to the whole 
executive, and to Home Office.

Responsible person should not resign
without a reasonable period of notice 
being given

Proposed Bylaw Change #3

Bylaw # Current Bylaws Proposed Change Rationale

6.05

New 
Sub-
Clause  
(2)

6.05  RESPONSIBLE PERSONS

6.05(1)(a) through (k) remain unchanged

6.05(2)    All persons elected to fulfil 
these duties shall maintain unity of the 
Association while serving the interests of 
members.

Current 6.05(2) then becomes 6.05(3) and 
6.05(3) becomes 6.05(4)

Congruence with the expectation stated 
in bylaw 7.01  FUNCTIONS OF INTEREST 
GROUPS and specifically, sub-clause (2) 

Proposed Bylaw Change #4

Bylaw # Current Bylaws Proposed Change Rationale

New 
Bylaw 
6.06 

6.0  CHAPTERS / REGION 
WITHOUT CHAPTERS

New Bylaw:  

6.06  VACANCY 
The office of  ‘Responsible Person’ of a  
Chapter/Region without Chapters shall be 
vacated if the incumbent Responsible Person:
   
(1)  resigns;
(2)  dies;
(3)  is declared mentally incompetent by 
a court of competent jurisdiction;
(4)  ceases to hold a certificate of registration;
(5)  is removed from office as  ‘Responsible  
Person’  by at least two-thirds of the votes 
cast at a general meeting of the chapter 
members having voting  rights, duly called 
for that purpose.

Current 6.06 through 6.12 will then be 
renumbered

Congruence with bylaw 4.0 BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS and specifically, bylaw 
4.08 VACANCY (1) through (5)
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Bylaw # Current Bylaws Proposed Change Rationale

4.19 

New 
Sub-
Clause  
(4)

4.19  DUTIES OF DIRECTORS 4.19(4)  maintain unity of the  
Association while serving the interests of 
members; and

Current 4.19(4) then becomes 4.19(5)

Congruence with the expectation stated 
in bylaw 7.01 FUNCTIONS OF INTEREST 
GROUPS and specifically, sub-clause (2) 

Bylaw # Current Bylaws Proposed Change Rationale

5.09 (6)

New 
Sub-
Clause  
(f)

5.09  PROVINCIAL 
RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE

5.09(6)  The members of the 
provincial resolutions  
committee shall,

5.09(6)(a) through (e) remain unchanged

5.09(6)(f)  have power to reject a  
resolution that the Association already  
considered at the previous general meeting;

Present 5.09(6)(f) then becomes 5.09(6)(g)

Congruence with the Provincial  
Resolutions Committee Terms of  
Reference

Bylaw # Current Bylaws Proposed Change Rationale

6.05 (1)

New 
Sub-
Clause  
(l)

6.05 RESPONSIBLE PERSONS

6.05(1)(a) through (k) remain unchanged

6.05(1)(l)   In the event the most 
responsible person is unable or unwilling to 
complete their term, they must provide thirty 
(30) days’ notice, in writing, to the whole 
executive, and to Home Office.

Responsible person should not resign
without a reasonable period of notice 
being given

Bylaw # Current Bylaws Proposed Change Rationale

6.05

New 
Sub-
Clause  
(2)

6.05  RESPONSIBLE PERSONS

6.05(1)(a) through (k) remain unchanged

6.05(2)    All persons elected to fulfil 
these duties shall maintain unity of the 
Association while serving the interests of 
members.

Current 6.05(2) then becomes 6.05(3) and 
6.05(3) becomes 6.05(4)

Congruence with the expectation stated 
in bylaw 7.01  FUNCTIONS OF INTEREST 
GROUPS and specifically, sub-clause (2) 

Bylaw # Current Bylaws Proposed Change Rationale

New 
Bylaw 
6.06 

6.0  CHAPTERS / REGION 
WITHOUT CHAPTERS

New Bylaw:  

6.06  VACANCY 
The office of  ‘Responsible Person’ of a  
Chapter/Region without Chapters shall be 
vacated if the incumbent Responsible Person:
   
(1)  resigns;
(2)  dies;
(3)  is declared mentally incompetent by 
a court of competent jurisdiction;
(4)  ceases to hold a certificate of registration;
(5)  is removed from office as  ‘Responsible  
Person’  by at least two-thirds of the votes 
cast at a general meeting of the chapter 
members having voting  rights, duly called 
for that purpose.

Current 6.06 through 6.12 will then be 
renumbered

Congruence with bylaw 4.0 BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS and specifically, bylaw 
4.08 VACANCY (1) through (5)

Proposed Bylaw Change #5
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REGISTERED NURSES’ ASSOCIATION OF ONTARIO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OCTOBER 31, 2009

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying financial statements and all other information contained in this annual report are the 

responsibility of the management of the Registered Nurses’ Association of Ontario.  The financial statements have 

been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and have been 

approved by the Board of Directors. 

 

Preparation of financial information is an integral part of management’s broader responsibilities for the ongoing 

operations of the Association, which includes adherence by all employees to the Association’s code of conduct.  

Management maintains a system of internal accounting controls to provide reasonable assurance that transactions 

are accurately recorded on a timely basis, are properly approved and result in reliable financial information.  Such 

information also includes data based on management’s best estimates and judgments. 
 

The Finance Committee reviews the audited financial statements and recommends them to the Board of Directors 

for approval.  In addition, the Finance Committee meets periodically with financial officers of the Association and 

the external auditors, and reports to the Board of Directors thereon.  The Finance Committee also reviews the annual 

report in its entirety. 

 

The accompanying financial statements have been audited by the auditors who are engaged by the Board of 

Directors on the recommendation of the Finance Committee and whose appointment was ratified at the annual 

meeting of members.  The auditors have access to the Finance Committee, without management present, to discuss 

the results of their work. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Wendy Fucile, RN, BScN, MPA, CHE  Doris Grinspun, RN, MSN, PhD (cand), O.ONT 

President     Executive Director 
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The accompanying financial statements and all other information contained in this annual report are the 
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approved by the Board of Directors. 
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the external auditors, and reports to the Board of Directors thereon.  The Finance Committee also reviews the annual 

report in its entirety. 
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Directors on the recommendation of the Finance Committee and whose appointment was ratified at the annual 

meeting of members.  The auditors have access to the Finance Committee, without management present, to discuss 

the results of their work. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Wendy Fucile, RN, BScN, MPA, CHE  Doris Grinspun, RN, MSN, PhD (cand), O.ONT 

President     Executive Director 
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REGISTERED NURSES' ASSOCIATION OF ONTARIO

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT OCTOBER 31, 2009

Permanent Legal
General Education Assistance MOHLTC Total Total

Fund Fund Fund Fund 2009 2008

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 1,544,953$     21,355$          102,061$        441,620$        2,109,989$     2,942,664$     
Short-term investments (Note 3) 354,494          2,747              396,000          -                     753,241          4,109,961       
Accounts receivable and 

accrued interest 484,750          7,381              27,960            487,012          1,007,103       849,233          
Prepaid expenses 172,009         -                   -                   -                   172,009          273,862         

2,556,206       31,483            526,021          928,632          4,042,342       8,175,720       

INVESTMENTS (Note 3) 4,644,963       463,934          3,466,542       -                     8,575,439       3,703,206       

LOANS RECEIVABLE -                     59,846            -                     -                     59,846            62,022            

LOAN RECEIVABLE  
FROM GENERAL FUND (Note 4) -                     -                     1,500,000       -                     1,500,000       1,500,000       

CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 5) 6,233,165      -                   -                   -                   6,233,165       6,482,235      

13,434,334$   555,263$       5,492,563$    928,632$       20,410,792$   19,923,183$   

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and 

accrued charges 1,161,823$     -$                   32,989$          152,534$        1,347,346$     1,157,415$     
Deferred revenue (Note 6) 3,420,133      -                   -                   -                   3,420,133       3,105,409      

 4,581,956       -                     32,989            152,534          4,767,479       4,262,824       

DUE TO MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND

LONG-TERM CARE (Note 7) -                     -                     -                     776,098          776,098          1,725,555       

LOAN PAYABLE TO LEGAL
ASSISTANCE FUND (Note 4) 1,500,000      -                   -                   -                   1,500,000       1,500,000      

6,081,956      -                   32,989          928,632        7,043,577       7,488,379      

FUND BALANCES 

Invested in capital assets (Note 8) 6,233,165       -                     -                     -                     6,233,165       6,482,235       
Internally restricted (Note 9) -                     -                     23,090            -                     23,090            23,090            
Externally restricted (Note 8 & 10) 972,987          -                     -                     -                     972,987          1,004,496       
Unrestricted (Note 8 & 9) 146,226          555,263          5,436,484       -                     6,137,973       4,924,983       

7,352,378      555,263        5,459,574     -                   13,367,215     12,434,804     

13,434,334$   555,263$       5,492,563$    928,632$       20,410,792$   19,923,183$   
Commitments (Note 11)     Contingent Liability (Note 12)

Approved by the Board

Wendy Fucile, RN, BScN, MPA, CHE Doris Grinspun, RN, MSN, PhD (cand), O.ONT
President Executive Director
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90 Allstate Parkway, Suite 501 

Markham, Ontario, L3R 6H3 

(905)479-1300 
Fax (905)479-1350 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To the Members of the Registered 

  Nurses’ Association of Ontario 

 
 

We have audited the statement of financial position of the Registered Nurses’ Association of Ontario as at October 

31, 2009 and the statements of operations and changes in fund balances and cash flows for the year then ended.  

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Association’s management.  Our responsibility is to express 

an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards 

require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of 

material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 

significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
 

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 

Registered Nurses’ Association of Ontario as at October 31, 2009, the results of its operations and its cash flows for 

the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 

 

 

         
 

Markham, Ontario      Chartered Accountants 

December 21, 2009      Licensed Public Accountants 
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REGISTERED NURSES' ASSOCIATION OF ONTARIO

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT OCTOBER 31, 2009

Permanent Legal
General Education Assistance MOHLTC Total Total

Fund Fund Fund Fund 2009 2008

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 1,544,953$     21,355$          102,061$        441,620$        2,109,989$     2,942,664$     
Short-term investments (Note 3) 354,494          2,747              396,000          -                     753,241          4,109,961       
Accounts receivable and 

accrued interest 484,750          7,381              27,960            487,012          1,007,103       849,233          
Prepaid expenses 172,009         -                   -                   -                   172,009          273,862         

2,556,206       31,483            526,021          928,632          4,042,342       8,175,720       

INVESTMENTS (Note 3) 4,644,963       463,934          3,466,542       -                     8,575,439       3,703,206       

LOANS RECEIVABLE -                     59,846            -                     -                     59,846            62,022            

LOAN RECEIVABLE  
FROM GENERAL FUND (Note 4) -                     -                     1,500,000       -                     1,500,000       1,500,000       

CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 5) 6,233,165      -                   -                   -                   6,233,165       6,482,235      

13,434,334$   555,263$       5,492,563$    928,632$       20,410,792$   19,923,183$   

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and 

accrued charges 1,161,823$     -$                   32,989$          152,534$        1,347,346$     1,157,415$     
Deferred revenue (Note 6) 3,420,133      -                   -                   -                   3,420,133       3,105,409      

 4,581,956       -                     32,989            152,534          4,767,479       4,262,824       

DUE TO MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND

LONG-TERM CARE (Note 7) -                     -                     -                     776,098          776,098          1,725,555       

LOAN PAYABLE TO LEGAL
ASSISTANCE FUND (Note 4) 1,500,000      -                   -                   -                   1,500,000       1,500,000      

6,081,956      -                   32,989          928,632        7,043,577       7,488,379      

FUND BALANCES 

Invested in capital assets (Note 8) 6,233,165       -                     -                     -                     6,233,165       6,482,235       
Internally restricted (Note 9) -                     -                     23,090            -                     23,090            23,090            
Externally restricted (Note 8 & 10) 972,987          -                     -                     -                     972,987          1,004,496       
Unrestricted (Note 8 & 9) 146,226          555,263          5,436,484       -                     6,137,973       4,924,983       

7,352,378      555,263        5,459,574     -                   13,367,215     12,434,804     

13,434,334$   555,263$       5,492,563$    928,632$       20,410,792$   19,923,183$   
Commitments (Note 11)     Contingent Liability (Note 12)

Approved by the Board

Wendy Fucile, RN, BScN, MPA, CHE Doris Grinspun, RN, MSN, PhD (cand), O.ONT
President Executive Director
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Statement of Operations 
for the year ended October 31, 2009

REGISTERED NURSES' ASSOCIATION OF ONTARIO

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2009

(Note 15)
Permanent Legal

General Education Assistance MOHLTC Total Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund 2009 2008

REVENUES
Memberships 4,725,756$     -$                   961,269$        -$                   5,687,025$     5,547,876$     
Centre for Professional Nursing Excellence 1,220,788       -                     -                     -                     1,220,788       661,437          
Other revenue 596,867          -                     -                     -                     596,867          622,655          
Investment income 127,217          19,104            146,090          -                     292,411          287,887          
Journal revenue 105,081          -                     -                     -                     105,081          101,495          
Member benefit programs 61,394            -                     -                     -                     61,394            82,686            
Grants -                     -                     -                     13,160,294     13,160,294     12,585,579     
BPG sales -                    -                   -                   30,662          30,662            66,059           

6,837,103      19,104          1,107,359     13,190,956   21,154,522     19,955,674    

EXPENSES

Staff costs 2,758,889       -                     133,000          -                     2,891,889       2,370,674       
CNA affiliation fees 1,218,546       -                     -                     -                     1,218,546       1,182,688       
Occupancy costs 470,208          -                     25,000            -                     495,208          402,450          
Centre for Professional Nursing Excellence 321,931          -                     -                     -                     321,931          318,630          
Member services and benefits 277,727          -                     -                     -                     277,727          261,211          
CNPS fees 259,211          -                     -                     -                     259,211          257,861          
RN Journal 205,025          -                     -                     -                     205,025          206,642          
Annual general meeting 150,192          -                     -                     -                     150,192          142,954          
Media and public relations 128,300          -                     -                     -                     128,300          73,690            
Office and administration 85,502            -                     46,930            -                     132,432          1,076
Chapter funding 82,342            -                     -                     -                     82,342            77,417            
Assembly 80,034            -                     -                     -                     80,034            84,014            
PhD Fellowships 75,000            -                     -                     -                     75,000            100,000          
Board meetings 65,732            -                     -                     -                     65,732            53,805            
Officers 44,985            -                     -                     -                     44,985            108,787          
Information management 42,728            -                     -                     -                     42,728            47,498            
Legal fees 22,830            -                     259,683          -                     282,513          268,905          
Health and nursing policy 21,205            -                     -                     -                     21,205            10,659            
Audit and other professional fees 17,803            -                     4,500              -                     22,303            22,503            
Board committees 3,383              -                     -                     -                     3,383              7,206              
Program costs (Note 7) -                    -                   -                   13,190,956   13,190,956     12,651,638    

6,331,573       -                     469,113          13,190,956     19,991,642     18,650,308     

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENSES BEFORE AMORTIZATION 505,530          19,104            638,246          -                     1,162,880       1,305,366       

AMORTIZATION 278,968         -                   -                   -                   278,968          292,803         

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENSES 226,562$       19,104$         638,246$       -$                  883,912$        1,012,563$    

- 4 -

REGISTERED NURSES' ASSOCIATION OF ONTARIO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2009

(Note 8) (Note 9)
Permanent Legal

General Education Assistance MOHLTC Total Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund 2009 2008

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 7,059,489$     547,060$        4,765,881$     -$                   12,372,430$   11,359,867$   

Excess of revenues over expenses 226,562         19,104          638,246        -                   883,912          1,012,563      

7,286,051      566,164        5,404,127     -                   13,256,342     12,372,430    

Cumulative unrealized gains reported 
directly in the statement of changes in fund 

balances, beginning of year 47,612            (16,804)          31,566            -                     62,374            263,244          

Changes in unrealized gains (losses) on 
available-for-sale financial assets during 

the year 18,715            5,903              23,881            -                     48,499            (200,870)        

Cumulative unrealized gains (losses) reported 
directly in the statement of changes in fund 

balances, end of year 66,327            (10,901)          55,447            -                     110,873          62,374            

FUND BALANCES, end of year 7,352,378$    555,263$       5,459,574$    -$                  13,367,215$   12,434,804$  

- 5 -
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REGISTERED NURSES' ASSOCIATION OF ONTARIO

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2009

(Note 15)
Permanent Legal

General Education Assistance MOHLTC Total Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund 2009 2008

REVENUES
Memberships 4,725,756$     -$                   961,269$        -$                   5,687,025$     5,547,876$     
Centre for Professional Nursing Excellence 1,220,788       -                     -                     -                     1,220,788       661,437          
Other revenue 596,867          -                     -                     -                     596,867          622,655          
Investment income 127,217          19,104            146,090          -                     292,411          287,887          
Journal revenue 105,081          -                     -                     -                     105,081          101,495          
Member benefit programs 61,394            -                     -                     -                     61,394            82,686            
Grants -                     -                     -                     13,160,294     13,160,294     12,585,579     
BPG sales -                    -                   -                   30,662          30,662            66,059           

6,837,103      19,104          1,107,359     13,190,956   21,154,522     19,955,674    

EXPENSES

Staff costs 2,758,889       -                     133,000          -                     2,891,889       2,370,674       
CNA affiliation fees 1,218,546       -                     -                     -                     1,218,546       1,182,688       
Occupancy costs 470,208          -                     25,000            -                     495,208          402,450          
Centre for Professional Nursing Excellence 321,931          -                     -                     -                     321,931          318,630          
Member services and benefits 277,727          -                     -                     -                     277,727          261,211          
CNPS fees 259,211          -                     -                     -                     259,211          257,861          
RN Journal 205,025          -                     -                     -                     205,025          206,642          
Annual general meeting 150,192          -                     -                     -                     150,192          142,954          
Media and public relations 128,300          -                     -                     -                     128,300          73,690            
Office and administration 85,502            -                     46,930            -                     132,432          1,076
Chapter funding 82,342            -                     -                     -                     82,342            77,417            
Assembly 80,034            -                     -                     -                     80,034            84,014            
PhD Fellowships 75,000            -                     -                     -                     75,000            100,000          
Board meetings 65,732            -                     -                     -                     65,732            53,805            
Officers 44,985            -                     -                     -                     44,985            108,787          
Information management 42,728            -                     -                     -                     42,728            47,498            
Legal fees 22,830            -                     259,683          -                     282,513          268,905          
Health and nursing policy 21,205            -                     -                     -                     21,205            10,659            
Audit and other professional fees 17,803            -                     4,500              -                     22,303            22,503            
Board committees 3,383              -                     -                     -                     3,383              7,206              
Program costs (Note 7) -                    -                   -                   13,190,956   13,190,956     12,651,638    

6,331,573       -                     469,113          13,190,956     19,991,642     18,650,308     

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENSES BEFORE AMORTIZATION 505,530          19,104            638,246          -                     1,162,880       1,305,366       

AMORTIZATION 278,968         -                   -                   -                   278,968          292,803         

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENSES 226,562$       19,104$         638,246$       -$                  883,912$        1,012,563$    
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Statement of Changes in Fund Balances 
for the year ended October 31, 2009

REGISTERED NURSES' ASSOCIATION OF ONTARIO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2009

(Note 8) (Note 9)
Permanent Legal

General Education Assistance MOHLTC Total Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund 2009 2008

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 7,059,489$     547,060$        4,765,881$     -$                   12,372,430$   11,359,867$   

Excess of revenues over expenses 226,562         19,104          638,246        -                   883,912          1,012,563      

7,286,051      566,164        5,404,127     -                   13,256,342     12,372,430    

Cumulative unrealized gains reported 
directly in the statement of changes in fund 

balances, beginning of year 47,612            (16,804)          31,566            -                     62,374            263,244          

Changes in unrealized gains (losses) on 
available-for-sale financial assets during 

the year 18,715            5,903              23,881            -                     48,499            (200,870)        

Cumulative unrealized gains (losses) reported 
directly in the statement of changes in fund 

balances, end of year 66,327            (10,901)          55,447            -                     110,873          62,374            

FUND BALANCES, end of year 7,352,378$    555,263$       5,459,574$    -$                  13,367,215$   12,434,804$  
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Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended October 31, 2009

REGISTERED NURSES' ASSOCIATION OF ONTARIO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2009

Permanent Legal
General Education Assistance MOHLTC Total Total

Fund Fund Fund Fund 2009 2008

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of revenues over expenses 226,562$        19,104$          638,246$        -$                   883,912$        1,012,563$     

Charges to operations not involving cash:
- amortization 278,968        -                   -                    -                   278,968        292,803        

505,530        19,104          638,246          -                   1,162,880     1,305,366     

Change in non-cash working 
capital balances related to operations:

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable and accrued interest (67,966)          (1,076)            1,367              (90,195)          (157,870)        (152,262)        
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 98,785            -                     -                     3,068              101,853          103,091          
Decrease (increase) in loans receivable -                     2,176              -                     -                     2,176              13,055            
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued charges 140,453          -                     10,665            38,812            189,930          219,679          
Increase in deferred revenue 314,724        -                   -                    -                   314,724        940,303        

485,996        1,100            12,032            (48,315)        450,813        1,123,866     

Net cash generated from operating activities 991,526        20,204          650,278          (48,315)        1,613,693     2,429,232     

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease (increase) in cost of investments (3,615,009)     (155,641)        (1,053,083)     -                   (4,823,733)     216,846          
Purchase of property and equipment (29,898)        -                   -                    -                   (29,898)        (156,333)      

Net cash generated from (used in) investing activities (3,644,907)   (155,641)      (1,053,083)     -                   (4,853,631)   60,513          

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to the

Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care -                   -                   -                    (949,457)      (949,457)      638,291        

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS DURING THE YEAR (2,653,381)     (135,437)        (402,805)        (997,772)        (4,189,395)     3,128,036       

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS , beginning of the year 4,552,828     159,539        900,866          1,439,392     7,052,625     3,924,589     

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS , end of the year 1,899,447$    24,102$         498,061$        441,620$       2,863,230$    7,052,625$    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REPRESENTED BY:
Cash 1,544,953$     21,355$          102,061$        441,620$        2,109,989$     2,942,664$     
Short-term investments 354,494        2,747            396,000          -                   753,241        4,109,961     

1,899,447$    24,102$         498,061$        441,620$       2,863,230$    7,052,625$    
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REGISTERED NURSES' ASSOCIATION OF ONTARIO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2009
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REGISTERED NURSES’ ASSOCIATION OF ONTARIO 

 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

OCTOBER 31, 2009  

 

 

1. NATURE OF THE ASSOCIATION 

 

 The Registered Nurses’ Association of Ontario (“the Association”) is an independent, voluntary professional 

association of registered nurses in Ontario, interested in providing a strong, credible voice to lead the nursing 
profession to influence and promote healthy public policy and promoting the full participation of all nurses in shaping 

and delivering health services now and in the future. 

 

The Association, in conjunction with the Ontario Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care (the “Ministry”), 

administers a Nursing Education Initiative to fund education and training grants to eligible nurses and to encourage the 

development of training programs for nurses so that nurses’ knowledge and skills will be increased to enhance the 

quality of care and services provided to patients (Note 7). 

 

The Association is classified as a non-profit organization under Section 149(1)(l) of the Income Tax Act (Canada) and 

as such is exempt from income tax.  

 

 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

 The Association follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. 

 
 Fund Accounting 

 

 Revenues and expenses relating to program delivery and administrative activities are reported in the General Fund. 

 

 Revenues and expenses relating to the activities of providing financial support by way of loans to members continuing 

their nursing studies are reported in the Permanent Education Fund.  At October 31, 2009, there were 43 loans 

outstanding (45 at October 31, 2008). 

 

 Revenues and expenses relating to the activities of providing financial assistance (to a maximum $10,000 per file) to 

eligible members for access to legal counsel concerning professional discipline and employment related issues are 

reported in the Legal Assistance Fund. 

 
Revenues and expenses relating to the activities of programs under the Nursing Education Initiative are reported in the 

Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care (“MOHLTC”) Fund. 

 

Revenue Recognition 

 

Membership fees relating to the current membership year are recorded as revenue in the accounts of the Association 

upon receipt.  Membership fees received that correspond to the up-coming membership year are accounted for as 

deferred revenue as at October 31 each year and recognized as income in the following year. 

  

Fees received for programs provided by the Centre for Professional Nursing Excellence and other conferences and 

workshops are recorded as deferred revenues and recognized as income in the year the related expenses are incurred. 
  

Grants received from the Ministry for programs under the Nursing Education Initiative (“NEI”) are recognized as 

revenue in the year in which the related expenses are incurred.  Investment income related to NEI funding belongs to 

the Ministry and is reported as a liability owing to the Ministry when it is earned. 

 

Revenues generated from the RN Journal, member benefit programs, sales of BPG program materials and other 

revenues, consisting of administration and project management fees, are recorded as revenue when they are earned.  
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REGISTERED NURSES' ASSOCIATION OF ONTARIO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2009

Permanent Legal
General Education Assistance MOHLTC Total Total

Fund Fund Fund Fund 2009 2008

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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Decrease (increase) in loans receivable -                     2,176              -                     -                     2,176              13,055            
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS DURING THE YEAR (2,653,381)     (135,437)        (402,805)        (997,772)        (4,189,395)     3,128,036       

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS , beginning of the year 4,552,828     159,539        900,866          1,439,392     7,052,625     3,924,589     

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS , end of the year 1,899,447$    24,102$         498,061$        441,620$       2,863,230$    7,052,625$    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REPRESENTED BY:
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REGISTERED NURSES’ ASSOCIATION OF ONTARIO 

 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

OCTOBER 31, 2009  

 

 

1. NATURE OF THE ASSOCIATION 

 

 The Registered Nurses’ Association of Ontario (“the Association”) is an independent, voluntary professional 

association of registered nurses in Ontario, interested in providing a strong, credible voice to lead the nursing 
profession to influence and promote healthy public policy and promoting the full participation of all nurses in shaping 

and delivering health services now and in the future. 

 

The Association, in conjunction with the Ontario Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care (the “Ministry”), 

administers a Nursing Education Initiative to fund education and training grants to eligible nurses and to encourage the 

development of training programs for nurses so that nurses’ knowledge and skills will be increased to enhance the 

quality of care and services provided to patients (Note 7). 

 

The Association is classified as a non-profit organization under Section 149(1)(l) of the Income Tax Act (Canada) and 

as such is exempt from income tax.  

 

 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

 The Association follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. 

 
 Fund Accounting 

 

 Revenues and expenses relating to program delivery and administrative activities are reported in the General Fund. 

 

 Revenues and expenses relating to the activities of providing financial support by way of loans to members continuing 

their nursing studies are reported in the Permanent Education Fund.  At October 31, 2009, there were 43 loans 

outstanding (45 at October 31, 2008). 

 

 Revenues and expenses relating to the activities of providing financial assistance (to a maximum $10,000 per file) to 

eligible members for access to legal counsel concerning professional discipline and employment related issues are 

reported in the Legal Assistance Fund. 

 
Revenues and expenses relating to the activities of programs under the Nursing Education Initiative are reported in the 

Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care (“MOHLTC”) Fund. 

 

Revenue Recognition 

 

Membership fees relating to the current membership year are recorded as revenue in the accounts of the Association 

upon receipt.  Membership fees received that correspond to the up-coming membership year are accounted for as 

deferred revenue as at October 31 each year and recognized as income in the following year. 

  

Fees received for programs provided by the Centre for Professional Nursing Excellence and other conferences and 

workshops are recorded as deferred revenues and recognized as income in the year the related expenses are incurred. 
  

Grants received from the Ministry for programs under the Nursing Education Initiative (“NEI”) are recognized as 

revenue in the year in which the related expenses are incurred.  Investment income related to NEI funding belongs to 

the Ministry and is reported as a liability owing to the Ministry when it is earned. 

 

Revenues generated from the RN Journal, member benefit programs, sales of BPG program materials and other 

revenues, consisting of administration and project management fees, are recorded as revenue when they are earned.  
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OCTOBER 31, 2009 

 

 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d) 

 

Revenue Recognition (cont’d) 

 

Investment income consists of dividends and interest income, and realized and unrealized investment gains and losses.  

Dividends and interest are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund when earned.  Realized gains and losses are 
recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the statement of operations while unrealized gains and losses on 

available-for-sale financial assets are included directly in net assets of the appropriate fund until the gain or loss is 

realized.  When gains or losses are realized on disposition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in net 

assets is transferred to net income. 

 

Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in which the related expenses are 

incurred.  Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund when received or receivable if 

the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

   

Capital Assets and Amortization 

 
 Capital assets are recorded in the General Fund at cost.  Amortization is provided on a straight-line basis over the 

assets’ estimated useful lives, which, for the following categories, are: 

 

   Building -   25 years 

   Office furniture and equipment -   10 years 

   Computer hardware -     5 years 

   Computer software -     2 years 

 

 Amortization expense is reported in the General Fund. 

 

Contributed Services 

 
 Volunteers contribute many hours per year to assist the Association in carrying out its service delivery activities.  

Because of the difficulty of determining their fair value, contributed services are not recognized in the financial 

statements. 

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents are composed of cash and short-term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 

twelve months or less. 

 

Impairment of long-lived assets 

 
The Association monitors the recoverability of long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment, whenever 

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.  The 

Association reviews factors such as current market value, future asset utilization and business climate and, when such 

indicators exist, compares the carrying value of the assets to the future undiscounted cash flows expected to result 

from the use of the related asset.  If such cash flows are less than the carrying value, the impairment charge to be 

recognized equals the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.  Fair value 

is generally measured equal to the estimated future discounted net cash flows from the asset or assets. 

 

Use of Estimates 

 

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles 

requires the Association to make estimates and assumptions which affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
as at October 31, 2009, and the revenues and expenses for the year then ended.  Actual results may differ from these 

estimates. 
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REGISTERED NURSES’ ASSOCIATION OF ONTARIO 

 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

OCTOBER 31, 2009 

 

 

3. INVESTMENTS  

 

The Association has invested funds in cash, guaranteed investment certificates, segregated funds, bonds and mutual 

funds, all of which are traded on a public stock exchange. 
 

Investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Association has the positive intention and 

ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity and are measured at their amortized cost.  Fixed income 

investments maturing within twelve months from the year-end date are classified as current.  

 

All other investments are classified as available-for-sale and are recorded at fair value.  It is not management’s 

intention to generate trading profits from short-term fluctuations in price. 

 

The Association’s investments consist of the following: 

 

 
Held-to-maturity investments maturing in the next twelve months consist of bonds and term deposits maturing at 

various times within the next year.  These investments bear effective interest rates from 3.6% to 5.5% (2008 - 2.16% 

to 5.0%) per annum. 
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OCTOBER 31, 2009 

 

 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d) 

 

Revenue Recognition (cont’d) 

 

Investment income consists of dividends and interest income, and realized and unrealized investment gains and losses.  

Dividends and interest are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund when earned.  Realized gains and losses are 
recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the statement of operations while unrealized gains and losses on 

available-for-sale financial assets are included directly in net assets of the appropriate fund until the gain or loss is 

realized.  When gains or losses are realized on disposition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in net 

assets is transferred to net income. 

 

Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in which the related expenses are 

incurred.  Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund when received or receivable if 

the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

   

Capital Assets and Amortization 

 
 Capital assets are recorded in the General Fund at cost.  Amortization is provided on a straight-line basis over the 

assets’ estimated useful lives, which, for the following categories, are: 

 

   Building -   25 years 

   Office furniture and equipment -   10 years 

   Computer hardware -     5 years 

   Computer software -     2 years 

 

 Amortization expense is reported in the General Fund. 

 

Contributed Services 

 
 Volunteers contribute many hours per year to assist the Association in carrying out its service delivery activities.  

Because of the difficulty of determining their fair value, contributed services are not recognized in the financial 

statements. 

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents are composed of cash and short-term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 

twelve months or less. 

 

Impairment of long-lived assets 

 
The Association monitors the recoverability of long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment, whenever 

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.  The 

Association reviews factors such as current market value, future asset utilization and business climate and, when such 

indicators exist, compares the carrying value of the assets to the future undiscounted cash flows expected to result 

from the use of the related asset.  If such cash flows are less than the carrying value, the impairment charge to be 

recognized equals the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.  Fair value 

is generally measured equal to the estimated future discounted net cash flows from the asset or assets. 

 

Use of Estimates 

 

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles 

requires the Association to make estimates and assumptions which affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
as at October 31, 2009, and the revenues and expenses for the year then ended.  Actual results may differ from these 

estimates. 

- 8 -

REGISTERED NURSES’ ASSOCIATION OF ONTARIO 
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OCTOBER 31, 2009 

 

 

3. INVESTMENTS  
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ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity and are measured at their amortized cost.  Fixed income 

investments maturing within twelve months from the year-end date are classified as current.  

 

All other investments are classified as available-for-sale and are recorded at fair value.  It is not management’s 

intention to generate trading profits from short-term fluctuations in price. 

 

The Association’s investments consist of the following: 

 

 
Held-to-maturity investments maturing in the next twelve months consist of bonds and term deposits maturing at 

various times within the next year.  These investments bear effective interest rates from 3.6% to 5.5% (2008 - 2.16% 

to 5.0%) per annum. 
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REGISTERED NURSES’ ASSOCIATION OF ONTARIO 

 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

OCTOBER 31, 2009 

 

 

3. INVESTMENTS (cont’d…) 

 

Held-to-maturity investments with maturity dates beyond the next twelve months consist of bonds, term deposits and 

mutual funds bearing interest from 2.6% to 5.8% (2008 - 3.6% to 5.5%) per annum, with maturity dates ranging from 
2011 to 2014.   

 

 

4. LOAN RECEIVABLE FROM GENERAL FUND 

 

In 2005, the Board approved the transfer of $1,500,000 from the Legal Assistance Fund to the General fund by way of 

a loan to finance the purchase of land and building located at 154/158 Pearl Street, Toronto, Ontario.  The loan is non-

interest bearing with no specific terms of repayment. 

 

The Board approved the Legal Assistance Program (“LAP”) as an investor in the Pearl Street property.  LAP is 

entitled to its proportionate share of any future capital gains from the sale of the property.     

 

 

 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS 

 

 

 

 

6. DEFERRED REVENUE 

 

The Association’s deferred revenue consists of the following: 
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7. MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND LONG-TERM CARE 

 

The Association receives monies from the Ministry to fund the various programs within the Nursing Education 

Initiative and other programs.  These monies are advanced in accordance with agreements between the Association 
and the Ministry.  The Association has signed an Agreement with the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care for the 

period April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2012 in relation to Clinical Best Practice Guidelines, Healthy Work Environment 

Best Practice Guidelines, Advanced Clinical Fellowships, Recruitment and Retention and Nursing Education Grants 

programs.  In the event of termination of the Agreement, the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care has agreed to the 

provision of funds reasonably necessary to wind-down the programs, notwithstanding that pursuant to the provisions 

of the Financial Administration Act (Ontario), if the Province does not receive the necessary appropriation from the 

Ontario Legislature the Province shall not be obligated to make any additional payments exceeding the remaining 

funds under the control of the Association.   Similar wind-down provisions are included in annual Agreements for 

other programs related to nursing practice and patient care.  Management believes the Ministry of Health and Long-

Term Care is fully committed to these projects. 

 
The following is a summary of expenditures incurred on MOHLTC Fund programs:  

 

 
Included in program costs are the following expenditures paid to the Association’s General fund:  $575,413 (2008 - 

$371,850) for estimated staff costs related to non-MOHLTC fund employees who work on MOHLTC fund programs 
during the year; $231,150 (2008 - $339,650) for the MOHLTC fund’s estimated share of office administration and 

overhead costs such as office supplies, telephone, and utilities; $85,000 management fee (2008 - $85,000).  These 

costs are set forth in the agreements with the Ministry.  

 

Due to the timing differences in year-ends between the Association (October 31) and the Ministry (March 31) and in 

the receipt of funding from the Ministry and the related program expenditures, there is often unspent funding on-hand 

at October 31.  Any funding that is unspent at the completion of the program, together with all interest income, is 

payable to the Ministry at the conclusion of the program, subject to the Ministry’s annual review of the individual 

programs.  Any unspent funding on-hand is therefore shown as due to the Ministry of Health and Long-term Care.  

Subsequent to year-end, the Association has incurred expenditures out of this balance to deliver services in accordance 

with the annual agreements with the Ministry. 
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OCTOBER 31, 2009 

 

 

3. INVESTMENTS (cont’d…) 

 

Held-to-maturity investments with maturity dates beyond the next twelve months consist of bonds, term deposits and 

mutual funds bearing interest from 2.6% to 5.8% (2008 - 3.6% to 5.5%) per annum, with maturity dates ranging from 
2011 to 2014.   

 

 

4. LOAN RECEIVABLE FROM GENERAL FUND 

 

In 2005, the Board approved the transfer of $1,500,000 from the Legal Assistance Fund to the General fund by way of 

a loan to finance the purchase of land and building located at 154/158 Pearl Street, Toronto, Ontario.  The loan is non-

interest bearing with no specific terms of repayment. 

 

The Board approved the Legal Assistance Program (“LAP”) as an investor in the Pearl Street property.  LAP is 

entitled to its proportionate share of any future capital gains from the sale of the property.     

 

 

 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS 

 

 

 

 

6. DEFERRED REVENUE 

 

The Association’s deferred revenue consists of the following: 
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7. MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND LONG-TERM CARE 

 

The Association receives monies from the Ministry to fund the various programs within the Nursing Education 

Initiative and other programs.  These monies are advanced in accordance with agreements between the Association 
and the Ministry.  The Association has signed an Agreement with the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care for the 

period April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2012 in relation to Clinical Best Practice Guidelines, Healthy Work Environment 

Best Practice Guidelines, Advanced Clinical Fellowships, Recruitment and Retention and Nursing Education Grants 

programs.  In the event of termination of the Agreement, the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care has agreed to the 

provision of funds reasonably necessary to wind-down the programs, notwithstanding that pursuant to the provisions 

of the Financial Administration Act (Ontario), if the Province does not receive the necessary appropriation from the 

Ontario Legislature the Province shall not be obligated to make any additional payments exceeding the remaining 

funds under the control of the Association.   Similar wind-down provisions are included in annual Agreements for 

other programs related to nursing practice and patient care.  Management believes the Ministry of Health and Long-

Term Care is fully committed to these projects. 

 
The following is a summary of expenditures incurred on MOHLTC Fund programs:  

 

 
Included in program costs are the following expenditures paid to the Association’s General fund:  $575,413 (2008 - 

$371,850) for estimated staff costs related to non-MOHLTC fund employees who work on MOHLTC fund programs 
during the year; $231,150 (2008 - $339,650) for the MOHLTC fund’s estimated share of office administration and 

overhead costs such as office supplies, telephone, and utilities; $85,000 management fee (2008 - $85,000).  These 

costs are set forth in the agreements with the Ministry.  

 

Due to the timing differences in year-ends between the Association (October 31) and the Ministry (March 31) and in 

the receipt of funding from the Ministry and the related program expenditures, there is often unspent funding on-hand 

at October 31.  Any funding that is unspent at the completion of the program, together with all interest income, is 

payable to the Ministry at the conclusion of the program, subject to the Ministry’s annual review of the individual 

programs.  Any unspent funding on-hand is therefore shown as due to the Ministry of Health and Long-term Care.  

Subsequent to year-end, the Association has incurred expenditures out of this balance to deliver services in accordance 

with the annual agreements with the Ministry. 
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7. MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND LONG-TERM CARE (cont’d…) 

 

The balance due to the Ministry is summarized as follows: 

 

 
Included in the balance of unspent funding due to the Ministry as at October 31, 2009 is $139,139 (2008 - $168,609) 

in accumulated interest income earned on funding received from the Ministry.  

 

 

8. CHANGES IN GENERAL FUND BALANCE  
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9. CHANGES IN LEGAL ASSISTANCE FUND BALANCE  

 

 In a prior year, the Board internally restricted $250,000 of the unrestricted balance of the Legal Assistance Fund to be 

used in support of legal fees in cases related to pay equity.  No legal fees were paid out of this appropriation during the 
current year for pay equity related cases.  The total legal fees paid to October 31, 2009 from these internally restricted 

funds are $226,910, leaving a balance of $23,090 available for the future.   

 

 
 

 

10. EXTERNALLY RESTRICTED PHD FELLOWSHIP FUND 

 

During the 2004 fiscal year, the Ministry approved the transfer of $1,000,000 of unspent funding to the General Fund 

to create a PhD Fellowship program that is expected to last approximately ten years.  The money must be kept in a 

separate account and any interest earned is added to the fund balance.  Additional funding from other sources may be 

added to the fund.  

 

Included in general fund assets are the following restricted amounts: 
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7. MINISTRY OF HEALTH AND LONG-TERM CARE (cont’d…) 

 

The balance due to the Ministry is summarized as follows: 

 

 
Included in the balance of unspent funding due to the Ministry as at October 31, 2009 is $139,139 (2008 - $168,609) 

in accumulated interest income earned on funding received from the Ministry.  

 

 

8. CHANGES IN GENERAL FUND BALANCE  
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9. CHANGES IN LEGAL ASSISTANCE FUND BALANCE  

 

 In a prior year, the Board internally restricted $250,000 of the unrestricted balance of the Legal Assistance Fund to be 

used in support of legal fees in cases related to pay equity.  No legal fees were paid out of this appropriation during the 
current year for pay equity related cases.  The total legal fees paid to October 31, 2009 from these internally restricted 

funds are $226,910, leaving a balance of $23,090 available for the future.   

 

 
 

 

10. EXTERNALLY RESTRICTED PHD FELLOWSHIP FUND 

 

During the 2004 fiscal year, the Ministry approved the transfer of $1,000,000 of unspent funding to the General Fund 

to create a PhD Fellowship program that is expected to last approximately ten years.  The money must be kept in a 

separate account and any interest earned is added to the fund balance.  Additional funding from other sources may be 

added to the fund.  

 

Included in general fund assets are the following restricted amounts: 
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OCTOBER 31, 2009 

 

 

11. COMMITMENTS 

 

 The Association has entered into operating leases for certain office equipment which requires the following minimum 

annual lease payments: 
     

2010 $ 32,730 

2011 $ 32,730 

 

 

12. CONTINGENT LIABILITY 

 

The Association has been named as one of a number of defendants in a statement of claim by a member claiming 

damages of $500,000.  The outcome of this action is currently undeterminable.  Management believes the exposure to 

liability is low and, therefore, no amounts have been accrued in these financial statements. 

 

 

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 

In accordance with section 3855, Financial Instruments – Recognition and Measurement, financial instruments are 

classified into one of the following five categories: held for trading, held to maturity, loans and receivables, available 

for sale, or other financial liabilities.  The classification determines the accounting treatment of the instrument.  The 

classification is determined by the Association when the financial instrument is initially recorded, based on the 

underlying purpose of the instrument. 

 

The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Association are classified and measured as follows: 
 

 
 

Financial instruments measured at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value and then subsequently at 

amortized cost with gains and losses recognized in the statement of operations in the period in which the gain or loss 

occurs.  Changes in the fair value of financial instruments classified as available for sale are recognized in the 

statement of changes in net assets until realized, at which time they are recognized in the statement of operations. 
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d…) 

 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

 
The fair value of a financial instrument is the estimated amount that the Association would receive or pay to settle a 

financial asset or financial liability as at the reporting date. 

 

The fair values of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued charges approximate their carrying 

values due to their nature or capacity for prompt liquidation. 

 

The fair values of investments are determined by reference to published bid price quotations in an active market at 

year-end for equity and fixed income investments and by reference to transaction net asset value for mutual funds. 

 

Risk Management 

 
The Association manages its exposure to the risks associated with financial instruments that have the potential to affect 

its operating and financial performance in accordance with its risk management policy.  The objective of the policy is 

to reduce volatility in cash flow and earnings and to preserve capital for strategic objectives.  The Board of Directors 

monitors compliance with risk management policies and procedures and reviews these policies and procedures on an 

annual basis.  The Association does not use derivative financial instruments to manage its risks. 

 

The Association is exposed to the following risks associated with its financial instruments: 

 

Credit Risk 

 

The Association is exposed to credit risk resulting from the possibility that third parties may default on their financial 

obligations, or if  there is a concentration of transactions carried out with the same party or if there is a concentration of 
financial obligations which have similar economic characteristics such that they could be similarly affected by changes 

in economic conditions.  The Association does not directly hold any collateral as security for financial obligations. 

 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at October 31, 2009 is as follows: 

 

 

 
Cash and fixed income investments: credit risk is minimized substantially by ensuring that these assets are invested in 

financial obligations of: governments;  major financial institutions that have been accorded investment grade ratings 

by a primary rating agency; and/or other creditworthy parties.  An ongoing review is performed to evaluate changes in 

the status of the issuers of securities authorized for investment under the Association’s investment policy. 

 

Accounts receivable and accrued interest and loans receivable: credit risk is minimized due to the large number and 

diversity of individuals and organizations owing monies to the Association. 
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d…) 

 

Liquidity Risk 

 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Association will not be able to meet a demand for cash or fund its obligations as they 
come due.  Liquidity risk also includes the risk of the Association not being able to liquidate assets in a timely manner 

at a reasonable price. 

 

The Association meets its liquidity requirements by preparing and monitoring detailed forecasts of cash flows from 

operations and anticipated investing and financing activities and holding assets that can be readily converted into cash.  

 

Market Risk 

 

The Association is exposed to market risk through the fluctuation in financial instrument fair values due to changes in 

market prices.  The significant market risks to which the Association is exposed are currency risk, interest rate risk, 

and other price risk. 
 

Currency Risk 

 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows from the instruments will 

fluctuate relative to the Canadian dollar due to changes in foreign exchange rates. 

 

The functional currency of the Association is the Canadian dollar.  The Association infrequently transacts in U.S. 

dollars due to certain revenues and operating costs being denominated in U.S. dollars. 

 

The Association does not use foreign exchange forward contracts to manage foreign exchange transaction exposures. 

 

At October 31, 2009 the Association has total cash balances of $61,954 (2008 - $19,593) denominated in U.S. dollars.  
The Association does not have any accounts receivable or investments denominated in U.S. dollars. 

 

Interest Rate Risk  

 

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows associated with the 

instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. 

 

The interest rate exposure of the Association arises from its interest bearing investments. 

 

The Association’s cash includes amounts on deposit with financial institutions that earn interest at market rates. 

 
The Association manages its exposure to interest rate risk of its cash by maximizing the interest income earned on 

excess funds while maintaining the minimum liquidity necessary to conduct operations on a day-to-day basis.  

Fluctuations in market rates of interest on cash do not have a significant impact on the Association’s results of 

operations. 

 

The primary objective of the Association with respect to its investments in fixed income investments is to ensure the 

security of principal amounts invested and provide for a high degree of liquidity, while achieving a satisfactory 

investment return. 
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11. COMMITMENTS 

 

 The Association has entered into operating leases for certain office equipment which requires the following minimum 

annual lease payments: 
     

2010 $ 32,730 

2011 $ 32,730 

 

 

12. CONTINGENT LIABILITY 

 

The Association has been named as one of a number of defendants in a statement of claim by a member claiming 

damages of $500,000.  The outcome of this action is currently undeterminable.  Management believes the exposure to 

liability is low and, therefore, no amounts have been accrued in these financial statements. 

 

 

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 

In accordance with section 3855, Financial Instruments – Recognition and Measurement, financial instruments are 

classified into one of the following five categories: held for trading, held to maturity, loans and receivables, available 

for sale, or other financial liabilities.  The classification determines the accounting treatment of the instrument.  The 

classification is determined by the Association when the financial instrument is initially recorded, based on the 

underlying purpose of the instrument. 

 

The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Association are classified and measured as follows: 
 

 
 

Financial instruments measured at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value and then subsequently at 

amortized cost with gains and losses recognized in the statement of operations in the period in which the gain or loss 

occurs.  Changes in the fair value of financial instruments classified as available for sale are recognized in the 

statement of changes in net assets until realized, at which time they are recognized in the statement of operations. 
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d…) 

 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

 
The fair value of a financial instrument is the estimated amount that the Association would receive or pay to settle a 

financial asset or financial liability as at the reporting date. 

 

The fair values of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued charges approximate their carrying 

values due to their nature or capacity for prompt liquidation. 

 

The fair values of investments are determined by reference to published bid price quotations in an active market at 

year-end for equity and fixed income investments and by reference to transaction net asset value for mutual funds. 

 

Risk Management 

 
The Association manages its exposure to the risks associated with financial instruments that have the potential to affect 

its operating and financial performance in accordance with its risk management policy.  The objective of the policy is 

to reduce volatility in cash flow and earnings and to preserve capital for strategic objectives.  The Board of Directors 

monitors compliance with risk management policies and procedures and reviews these policies and procedures on an 

annual basis.  The Association does not use derivative financial instruments to manage its risks. 

 

The Association is exposed to the following risks associated with its financial instruments: 

 

Credit Risk 

 

The Association is exposed to credit risk resulting from the possibility that third parties may default on their financial 

obligations, or if  there is a concentration of transactions carried out with the same party or if there is a concentration of 
financial obligations which have similar economic characteristics such that they could be similarly affected by changes 

in economic conditions.  The Association does not directly hold any collateral as security for financial obligations. 

 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at October 31, 2009 is as follows: 

 

 

 
Cash and fixed income investments: credit risk is minimized substantially by ensuring that these assets are invested in 

financial obligations of: governments;  major financial institutions that have been accorded investment grade ratings 

by a primary rating agency; and/or other creditworthy parties.  An ongoing review is performed to evaluate changes in 

the status of the issuers of securities authorized for investment under the Association’s investment policy. 

 

Accounts receivable and accrued interest and loans receivable: credit risk is minimized due to the large number and 

diversity of individuals and organizations owing monies to the Association. 
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d…) 

 

Liquidity Risk 

 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Association will not be able to meet a demand for cash or fund its obligations as they 
come due.  Liquidity risk also includes the risk of the Association not being able to liquidate assets in a timely manner 

at a reasonable price. 

 

The Association meets its liquidity requirements by preparing and monitoring detailed forecasts of cash flows from 

operations and anticipated investing and financing activities and holding assets that can be readily converted into cash.  

 

Market Risk 

 

The Association is exposed to market risk through the fluctuation in financial instrument fair values due to changes in 

market prices.  The significant market risks to which the Association is exposed are currency risk, interest rate risk, 

and other price risk. 
 

Currency Risk 

 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows from the instruments will 

fluctuate relative to the Canadian dollar due to changes in foreign exchange rates. 

 

The functional currency of the Association is the Canadian dollar.  The Association infrequently transacts in U.S. 

dollars due to certain revenues and operating costs being denominated in U.S. dollars. 

 

The Association does not use foreign exchange forward contracts to manage foreign exchange transaction exposures. 

 

At October 31, 2009 the Association has total cash balances of $61,954 (2008 - $19,593) denominated in U.S. dollars.  
The Association does not have any accounts receivable or investments denominated in U.S. dollars. 

 

Interest Rate Risk  

 

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows associated with the 

instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. 

 

The interest rate exposure of the Association arises from its interest bearing investments. 

 

The Association’s cash includes amounts on deposit with financial institutions that earn interest at market rates. 

 
The Association manages its exposure to interest rate risk of its cash by maximizing the interest income earned on 

excess funds while maintaining the minimum liquidity necessary to conduct operations on a day-to-day basis.  

Fluctuations in market rates of interest on cash do not have a significant impact on the Association’s results of 

operations. 

 

The primary objective of the Association with respect to its investments in fixed income investments is to ensure the 

security of principal amounts invested and provide for a high degree of liquidity, while achieving a satisfactory 

investment return. 
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d…) 

 

Liquidity Risk 

 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Association will not be able to meet a demand for cash or fund its obligations as they 
come due.  Liquidity risk also includes the risk of the Association not being able to liquidate assets in a timely manner 

at a reasonable price. 

 

The Association meets its liquidity requirements by preparing and monitoring detailed forecasts of cash flows from 

operations and anticipated investing and financing activities and holding assets that can be readily converted into cash.  

 

Market Risk 

 

The Association is exposed to market risk through the fluctuation in financial instrument fair values due to changes in 

market prices.  The significant market risks to which the Association is exposed are currency risk, interest rate risk, 

and other price risk. 
 

Currency Risk 

 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows from the instruments will 

fluctuate relative to the Canadian dollar due to changes in foreign exchange rates. 

 

The functional currency of the Association is the Canadian dollar.  The Association infrequently transacts in U.S. 

dollars due to certain revenues and operating costs being denominated in U.S. dollars. 

 

The Association does not use foreign exchange forward contracts to manage foreign exchange transaction exposures. 

 

At October 31, 2009 the Association has total cash balances of $61,954 (2008 - $19,593) denominated in U.S. dollars.  
The Association does not have any accounts receivable or investments denominated in U.S. dollars. 

 

Interest Rate Risk  

 

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows associated with the 

instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. 

 

The interest rate exposure of the Association arises from its interest bearing investments. 

 

The Association’s cash includes amounts on deposit with financial institutions that earn interest at market rates. 

 
The Association manages its exposure to interest rate risk of its cash by maximizing the interest income earned on 

excess funds while maintaining the minimum liquidity necessary to conduct operations on a day-to-day basis.  

Fluctuations in market rates of interest on cash do not have a significant impact on the Association’s results of 

operations. 

 

The primary objective of the Association with respect to its investments in fixed income investments is to ensure the 

security of principal amounts invested and provide for a high degree of liquidity, while achieving a satisfactory 

investment return. 
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d…) 

 

Interest Rate Risk (cont’d…)  

 

The Association manages the interest rate risk exposure by using a laddered portfolio with varying terms to maturity.  

The laddered structure of maturities helps to enhance the average portfolio yield while reducing the sensitivity of the 
portfolio to the impact of interest rate fluctuations.   

 

At October 31, 2009 the Association had $6,288,805 (2008 - $7,427,002) of investments exposed to interest rate risk.   

 

Accounts receivable are not exposed to interest rate risk

 

Other Price Risk 

 

Other price risk refers to the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows associated with the 

instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency or interest rate 

risk). 
 

The Association is exposed to securities price risk due to its investments in fixed income investments and mutual 

funds. 

 

At October 31, 2009 the Association had $9,328,680 (2008 - $7,813,167) of investments exposed to other price risk.   

 

 

 

14. CAPITAL DISCLOSURES 

 

The Association’s sole objective when managing capital is to ensure ongoing financial stability that will allow the 

Association to continue as a going concern and support its non-profit Mission, Speaking out for Health, Speaking out 

for Nursing.  The Board of Directors and senior management develop a capital strategy and oversee management of 

capital assets.  Short-term capital is invested with the objective of providing a reasonable rate of return while 

preserving integrity of capital in a balanced portfolio of fixed term investments and equities, ensuring adequate 

liquidity as well as congruence with the Association’s non-profit Mission and values.  Long-term capital is invested 

with the objective of strengthening and ensuring future sustainability of the Association.  The Association seeks to 
maintain financial resources sufficient to withstand negative unexpected events which may have significant financial 

consequences for the Association’s non-profit activities and to maintain up to one year’s operating requirements in 

reserve. 

 

The Association considers its capital to be the balances maintained in its Unrestricted Assets. 

 

$972,987 (2008 - $1,004,496) of the Association’s capital is externally restricted and must be maintained exclusively 

for the purpose of supporting the Association’s PhD Fellowship Program.  The Association has been in compliance 

with all external restrictions throughout the year.  The Association also has $23,090 internally restricted in its Legal 

Assistance Program Fund. 

 

 

 

15. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 

 

 Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in the current year. 
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d…) 

 

Liquidity Risk 

 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Association will not be able to meet a demand for cash or fund its obligations as they 
come due.  Liquidity risk also includes the risk of the Association not being able to liquidate assets in a timely manner 

at a reasonable price. 

 

The Association meets its liquidity requirements by preparing and monitoring detailed forecasts of cash flows from 

operations and anticipated investing and financing activities and holding assets that can be readily converted into cash.  

 

Market Risk 

 

The Association is exposed to market risk through the fluctuation in financial instrument fair values due to changes in 

market prices.  The significant market risks to which the Association is exposed are currency risk, interest rate risk, 

and other price risk. 
 

Currency Risk 

 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows from the instruments will 

fluctuate relative to the Canadian dollar due to changes in foreign exchange rates. 

 

The functional currency of the Association is the Canadian dollar.  The Association infrequently transacts in U.S. 

dollars due to certain revenues and operating costs being denominated in U.S. dollars. 

 

The Association does not use foreign exchange forward contracts to manage foreign exchange transaction exposures. 

 

At October 31, 2009 the Association has total cash balances of $61,954 (2008 - $19,593) denominated in U.S. dollars.  
The Association does not have any accounts receivable or investments denominated in U.S. dollars. 

 

Interest Rate Risk  

 

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows associated with the 

instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. 

 

The interest rate exposure of the Association arises from its interest bearing investments. 

 

The Association’s cash includes amounts on deposit with financial institutions that earn interest at market rates. 

 
The Association manages its exposure to interest rate risk of its cash by maximizing the interest income earned on 

excess funds while maintaining the minimum liquidity necessary to conduct operations on a day-to-day basis.  

Fluctuations in market rates of interest on cash do not have a significant impact on the Association’s results of 

operations. 

 

The primary objective of the Association with respect to its investments in fixed income investments is to ensure the 

security of principal amounts invested and provide for a high degree of liquidity, while achieving a satisfactory 

investment return. 
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d…) 

 

Interest Rate Risk (cont’d…)  

 

The Association manages the interest rate risk exposure by using a laddered portfolio with varying terms to maturity.  

The laddered structure of maturities helps to enhance the average portfolio yield while reducing the sensitivity of the 
portfolio to the impact of interest rate fluctuations.   

 

At October 31, 2009 the Association had $6,288,805 (2008 - $7,427,002) of investments exposed to interest rate risk.   

 

Accounts receivable are not exposed to interest rate risk

 

Other Price Risk 

 

Other price risk refers to the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows associated with the 

instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency or interest rate 

risk). 
 

The Association is exposed to securities price risk due to its investments in fixed income investments and mutual 

funds. 

 

At October 31, 2009 the Association had $9,328,680 (2008 - $7,813,167) of investments exposed to other price risk.   

 

 

 

14. CAPITAL DISCLOSURES 

 

The Association’s sole objective when managing capital is to ensure ongoing financial stability that will allow the 

Association to continue as a going concern and support its non-profit Mission, Speaking out for Health, Speaking out 

for Nursing.  The Board of Directors and senior management develop a capital strategy and oversee management of 

capital assets.  Short-term capital is invested with the objective of providing a reasonable rate of return while 

preserving integrity of capital in a balanced portfolio of fixed term investments and equities, ensuring adequate 

liquidity as well as congruence with the Association’s non-profit Mission and values.  Long-term capital is invested 

with the objective of strengthening and ensuring future sustainability of the Association.  The Association seeks to 
maintain financial resources sufficient to withstand negative unexpected events which may have significant financial 

consequences for the Association’s non-profit activities and to maintain up to one year’s operating requirements in 

reserve. 

 

The Association considers its capital to be the balances maintained in its Unrestricted Assets. 

 

$972,987 (2008 - $1,004,496) of the Association’s capital is externally restricted and must be maintained exclusively 

for the purpose of supporting the Association’s PhD Fellowship Program.  The Association has been in compliance 

with all external restrictions throughout the year.  The Association also has $23,090 internally restricted in its Legal 

Assistance Program Fund. 

 

 

 

15. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 

 

 Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in the current year. 
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Interest Rate Risk (cont’d…)  
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16. FUTURE ACCOUNTING CHANGES 

 

 International Financial Reporting Standards 

 

 The accounting standards board has announced that all Canadian reporting entities, subject to certain exceptions which 

include not-for-profit organizations, will adopt International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as Canadian 
generally accepted accounting principles for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011.  The Association, at its 

option, may adopt IFRS if it so chooses.  The Association is currently evaluating the implications of the adoption of 

these new standards. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

OCTOBER 31, 2009 

 

 

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d…) 

 

Liquidity Risk 

 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Association will not be able to meet a demand for cash or fund its obligations as they 
come due.  Liquidity risk also includes the risk of the Association not being able to liquidate assets in a timely manner 

at a reasonable price. 

 

The Association meets its liquidity requirements by preparing and monitoring detailed forecasts of cash flows from 

operations and anticipated investing and financing activities and holding assets that can be readily converted into cash.  

 

Market Risk 

 

The Association is exposed to market risk through the fluctuation in financial instrument fair values due to changes in 

market prices.  The significant market risks to which the Association is exposed are currency risk, interest rate risk, 

and other price risk. 
 

Currency Risk 

 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows from the instruments will 

fluctuate relative to the Canadian dollar due to changes in foreign exchange rates. 

 

The functional currency of the Association is the Canadian dollar.  The Association infrequently transacts in U.S. 

dollars due to certain revenues and operating costs being denominated in U.S. dollars. 

 

The Association does not use foreign exchange forward contracts to manage foreign exchange transaction exposures. 

 

At October 31, 2009 the Association has total cash balances of $61,954 (2008 - $19,593) denominated in U.S. dollars.  
The Association does not have any accounts receivable or investments denominated in U.S. dollars. 

 

Interest Rate Risk  

 

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows associated with the 

instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. 

 

The interest rate exposure of the Association arises from its interest bearing investments. 

 

The Association’s cash includes amounts on deposit with financial institutions that earn interest at market rates. 

 
The Association manages its exposure to interest rate risk of its cash by maximizing the interest income earned on 

excess funds while maintaining the minimum liquidity necessary to conduct operations on a day-to-day basis.  

Fluctuations in market rates of interest on cash do not have a significant impact on the Association’s results of 

operations. 

 

The primary objective of the Association with respect to its investments in fixed income investments is to ensure the 

security of principal amounts invested and provide for a high degree of liquidity, while achieving a satisfactory 

investment return. 
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d…) 

 

Interest Rate Risk (cont’d…)  

 

The Association manages the interest rate risk exposure by using a laddered portfolio with varying terms to maturity.  

The laddered structure of maturities helps to enhance the average portfolio yield while reducing the sensitivity of the 
portfolio to the impact of interest rate fluctuations.   

 

At October 31, 2009 the Association had $6,288,805 (2008 - $7,427,002) of investments exposed to interest rate risk.   

 

Accounts receivable are not exposed to interest rate risk

 

Other Price Risk 

 

Other price risk refers to the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows associated with the 

instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency or interest rate 

risk). 
 

The Association is exposed to securities price risk due to its investments in fixed income investments and mutual 

funds. 

 

At October 31, 2009 the Association had $9,328,680 (2008 - $7,813,167) of investments exposed to other price risk.   

 

 

 

14. CAPITAL DISCLOSURES 

 

The Association’s sole objective when managing capital is to ensure ongoing financial stability that will allow the 

Association to continue as a going concern and support its non-profit Mission, Speaking out for Health, Speaking out 

for Nursing.  The Board of Directors and senior management develop a capital strategy and oversee management of 

capital assets.  Short-term capital is invested with the objective of providing a reasonable rate of return while 

preserving integrity of capital in a balanced portfolio of fixed term investments and equities, ensuring adequate 

liquidity as well as congruence with the Association’s non-profit Mission and values.  Long-term capital is invested 

with the objective of strengthening and ensuring future sustainability of the Association.  The Association seeks to 
maintain financial resources sufficient to withstand negative unexpected events which may have significant financial 

consequences for the Association’s non-profit activities and to maintain up to one year’s operating requirements in 

reserve. 

 

The Association considers its capital to be the balances maintained in its Unrestricted Assets. 

 

$972,987 (2008 - $1,004,496) of the Association’s capital is externally restricted and must be maintained exclusively 

for the purpose of supporting the Association’s PhD Fellowship Program.  The Association has been in compliance 

with all external restrictions throughout the year.  The Association also has $23,090 internally restricted in its Legal 

Assistance Program Fund. 

 

 

 

15. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 

 

 Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in the current year. 
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Liquidity Risk 
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come due.  Liquidity risk also includes the risk of the Association not being able to liquidate assets in a timely manner 

at a reasonable price. 

 

The Association meets its liquidity requirements by preparing and monitoring detailed forecasts of cash flows from 

operations and anticipated investing and financing activities and holding assets that can be readily converted into cash.  

 

Market Risk 

 

The Association is exposed to market risk through the fluctuation in financial instrument fair values due to changes in 

market prices.  The significant market risks to which the Association is exposed are currency risk, interest rate risk, 

and other price risk. 
 

Currency Risk 

 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows from the instruments will 

fluctuate relative to the Canadian dollar due to changes in foreign exchange rates. 

 

The functional currency of the Association is the Canadian dollar.  The Association infrequently transacts in U.S. 

dollars due to certain revenues and operating costs being denominated in U.S. dollars. 

 

The Association does not use foreign exchange forward contracts to manage foreign exchange transaction exposures. 

 

At October 31, 2009 the Association has total cash balances of $61,954 (2008 - $19,593) denominated in U.S. dollars.  
The Association does not have any accounts receivable or investments denominated in U.S. dollars. 

 

Interest Rate Risk  

 

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows associated with the 

instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. 

 

The interest rate exposure of the Association arises from its interest bearing investments. 

 

The Association’s cash includes amounts on deposit with financial institutions that earn interest at market rates. 

 
The Association manages its exposure to interest rate risk of its cash by maximizing the interest income earned on 

excess funds while maintaining the minimum liquidity necessary to conduct operations on a day-to-day basis.  

Fluctuations in market rates of interest on cash do not have a significant impact on the Association’s results of 

operations. 

 

The primary objective of the Association with respect to its investments in fixed income investments is to ensure the 

security of principal amounts invested and provide for a high degree of liquidity, while achieving a satisfactory 

investment return. 
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d…) 

 

Interest Rate Risk (cont’d…)  

 

The Association manages the interest rate risk exposure by using a laddered portfolio with varying terms to maturity.  

The laddered structure of maturities helps to enhance the average portfolio yield while reducing the sensitivity of the 
portfolio to the impact of interest rate fluctuations.   

 

At October 31, 2009 the Association had $6,288,805 (2008 - $7,427,002) of investments exposed to interest rate risk.   

 

Accounts receivable are not exposed to interest rate risk

 

Other Price Risk 

 

Other price risk refers to the risk that the fair value of financial instruments or future cash flows associated with the 

instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency or interest rate 

risk). 
 

The Association is exposed to securities price risk due to its investments in fixed income investments and mutual 

funds. 

 

At October 31, 2009 the Association had $9,328,680 (2008 - $7,813,167) of investments exposed to other price risk.   

 

 

 

14. CAPITAL DISCLOSURES 

 

The Association’s sole objective when managing capital is to ensure ongoing financial stability that will allow the 

Association to continue as a going concern and support its non-profit Mission, Speaking out for Health, Speaking out 

for Nursing.  The Board of Directors and senior management develop a capital strategy and oversee management of 

capital assets.  Short-term capital is invested with the objective of providing a reasonable rate of return while 

preserving integrity of capital in a balanced portfolio of fixed term investments and equities, ensuring adequate 

liquidity as well as congruence with the Association’s non-profit Mission and values.  Long-term capital is invested 

with the objective of strengthening and ensuring future sustainability of the Association.  The Association seeks to 
maintain financial resources sufficient to withstand negative unexpected events which may have significant financial 

consequences for the Association’s non-profit activities and to maintain up to one year’s operating requirements in 

reserve. 

 

The Association considers its capital to be the balances maintained in its Unrestricted Assets. 

 

$972,987 (2008 - $1,004,496) of the Association’s capital is externally restricted and must be maintained exclusively 

for the purpose of supporting the Association’s PhD Fellowship Program.  The Association has been in compliance 
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report of resolutions from 2009 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the RNAO continue to advocate for universal, regulated affordable
child care as a key pillar of Ontario’s poverty reduction strategy and that resources be developed to inform
and engage not only registered nurses but nursing students, members of other health disciplines, politicians
and interested members of the community.

On January 28, 2010, RNAO released Creating Vibrant Communities: RNAO’s Challenge to Ontario’s Political 
Parties, RNAO’s key policy priorities or platform for the 2011 provincial election.  During the interim period, 
all political parties will be asked to commit to the priorities set out in the RNAO platform including  
designating funding to save threatened child care subsidies, building new affordable child care spaces, and 
advocating for a national affordable, regulated, not-for-profit child care program. 

Advocacy and education strategies include action alerts in response to the Ontario and federal spring 
budgets to involve RNAO members and nursing students and working in collaboration with the Coalition 
for Better Child Care, and such anti-poverty coalition partners as Campaign 2000 and their campaign to 
lobby MPPs to save threatened subsidized child care spaces.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that RNAO lobby the Provincial Government to have Retirement Homes and 
Group Homes in Ontario operate under a provincially operated licensing system and regulations.

On January 28, 2010, RNAO raised concerns directly with Gerry Phillips, Minister Responsible for Seniors 
and Chair of Cabinet that unregulated Retirement Homes are starting to admit ALC beds. Minister Phillips 
was quoted on February 22, 2010, as promising to introduce legislation later this spring requiring retirement 
homes to assess new residents, outline services they provide, and meet certain standards in infection control, 
safety, staff training and resident services. RNAO will follow the legislation closely and advocate strongly for 
adequate funding for appropriate care for all.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that RNAO lobby the provincial government for standardized education for 
PSWs that reflects the Ontario Ministry of Training, Colleges, and Universities standards for PSW education; 
and
THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that RNAO collaborate with Ontario educational institutions  
with PSW programs, to assist in development and management of curriculum related to the roles of  
interprofessional team members through an understanding of team members scope of practice/ 
employment, mutual expectations, and responsibilities.

RNAO Health and Nursing Policy met directly with the movers of the resolution to discuss strategies on  
moving this agenda forward. Plans are to meet with John Milloy, Minister of Training, Colleges and  
Universities to discuss this and related education priorities. 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that RNAO collaborate with all relevant sectors of the education and the 
health-care system to ensure the integration and curricular enhancement of community health nursing 
theory and practice in all undergraduate nursing programs in Ontario.

On October 5, 2009, RNAO Health and Nursing Policy met with CHNIG to identify what background  
information is required to develop effective advocacy on strengthening community health nursing  
education.  In addition to accessing current data through CASN and COUPN, discussions include potential 
surveys and focus groups. Health and Nursing Policy continues to collaborate with CHNIG and other  
relevant sectors to develop advocacy strategies around this resolution.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Registered Nurses’ Association of Ontario advocate to the 
Government of Ontario an increase of $500 to $2,000 for the Nursing Education Initiative per nurse per year.

On January 28, 2010, RNAO released Creating Vibrant Communities: RNAO’s Challenge to Ontario’s  
Political Parties, RNAO’s key policy priorities or platform for the 2011 provincial election.  During the  
interim period, all political parties will be asked to commit to the priorities set out in the RNAO platform. 
This includes a specific request in the platform to increase the Nursing Education Initiative (NEI) by $500 
for a total of $2,000 per nurse per year.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that RNAO meet with key stakeholders to develop comprehensive 
evidence-based guidelines for healthcare facility design and construction. 

On January 28, 2010, RNAO released Creating Vibrant Communities: RNAO’s Challenge to Ontario’s  
Political Parties, RNAO’s key policy priorities or platform for the 2011 provincial election. During the  
interim period, all political parties will be asked to commit to the priorities set out in the RNAO platform. 
This includes a specific request in the platform to “ensure that publicly financed and built hospital projects 
follow comprehensive evidence-based guidelines for health-care facility design and construction.”

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the RNAO meet with the relevant stakeholders to identify and discuss 
gaps in health services for school age children and advocate for an increased nursing presence in schools.

On January 28, 2010, RNAO released Creating Vibrant Communities: RNAO’s Challenge to Ontario’s  
Political Parties, RNAO’s key policy priorities or platform for the 2011 provincial election.  During the  
interim period, all political parties will be asked to commit to the priorities set out in the RNAO platform. 
This includes a specific request in the platform to “support the increased presence of school nurses, to  
promote health education, and public health measures in the school environment.”

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that any decision on the sale of the Association’s Pearl Street home office 
building will be initiated by RNAO Board of Directors and brought for decision with voting delegates at a 
general meeting.

This resolution will be enforced by RNAO Board of Directors, in the event of any future decision to sell the Pearl 
Street home office building.
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THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the RNAO continue to advocate for universal, regulated affordable
child care as a key pillar of Ontario’s poverty reduction strategy and that resources be developed to inform
and engage not only registered nurses but nursing students, members of other health disciplines, politicians
and interested members of the community.

On January 28, 2010, RNAO released Creating Vibrant Communities: RNAO’s Challenge to Ontario’s Political 
Parties, RNAO’s key policy priorities or platform for the 2011 provincial election.  During the interim period, 
all political parties will be asked to commit to the priorities set out in the RNAO platform including  
designating funding to save threatened child care subsidies, building new affordable child care spaces, and 
advocating for a national affordable, regulated, not-for-profit child care program. 

Advocacy and education strategies include action alerts in response to the Ontario and federal spring 
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homes to assess new residents, outline services they provide, and meet certain standards in infection control, 
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adequate funding for appropriate care for all.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that RNAO lobby the provincial government for standardized education for 
PSWs that reflects the Ontario Ministry of Training, Colleges, and Universities standards for PSW education; 
and
THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that RNAO collaborate with Ontario educational institutions  
with PSW programs, to assist in development and management of curriculum related to the roles of  
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RNAO Health and Nursing Policy met directly with the movers of the resolution to discuss strategies on  
moving this agenda forward. Plans are to meet with John Milloy, Minister of Training, Colleges and  
Universities to discuss this and related education priorities. 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that RNAO collaborate with all relevant sectors of the education and the 
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theory and practice in all undergraduate nursing programs in Ontario.

On October 5, 2009, RNAO Health and Nursing Policy met with CHNIG to identify what background  
information is required to develop effective advocacy on strengthening community health nursing  
education.  In addition to accessing current data through CASN and COUPN, discussions include potential 
surveys and focus groups. Health and Nursing Policy continues to collaborate with CHNIG and other  
relevant sectors to develop advocacy strategies around this resolution.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Registered Nurses’ Association of Ontario advocate to the 
Government of Ontario an increase of $500 to $2,000 for the Nursing Education Initiative per nurse per year.

On January 28, 2010, RNAO released Creating Vibrant Communities: RNAO’s Challenge to Ontario’s  
Political Parties, RNAO’s key policy priorities or platform for the 2011 provincial election.  During the  
interim period, all political parties will be asked to commit to the priorities set out in the RNAO platform. 
This includes a specific request in the platform to increase the Nursing Education Initiative (NEI) by $500 
for a total of $2,000 per nurse per year.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that RNAO meet with key stakeholders to develop comprehensive 
evidence-based guidelines for healthcare facility design and construction. 

On January 28, 2010, RNAO released Creating Vibrant Communities: RNAO’s Challenge to Ontario’s  
Political Parties, RNAO’s key policy priorities or platform for the 2011 provincial election. During the  
interim period, all political parties will be asked to commit to the priorities set out in the RNAO platform. 
This includes a specific request in the platform to “ensure that publicly financed and built hospital projects 
follow comprehensive evidence-based guidelines for health-care facility design and construction.”

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the RNAO meet with the relevant stakeholders to identify and discuss 
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On January 28, 2010, RNAO released Creating Vibrant Communities: RNAO’s Challenge to Ontario’s  
Political Parties, RNAO’s key policy priorities or platform for the 2011 provincial election.  During the  
interim period, all political parties will be asked to commit to the priorities set out in the RNAO platform. 
This includes a specific request in the platform to “support the increased presence of school nurses, to  
promote health education, and public health measures in the school environment.”

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that any decision on the sale of the Association’s Pearl Street home office 
building will be initiated by RNAO Board of Directors and brought for decision with voting delegates at a 
general meeting.

This resolution will be enforced by RNAO Board of Directors, in the event of any future decision to sell the Pearl 
Street home office building.
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158 Pearl Street, Toronto, ON  M5H 1L3

Important note: The information contained within this report is circulated to you as required by Association bylaws. As a cost-saving 
measure, limited copies only will be available at the RNAO 2010 Annual General Meeting. Please bring this document with you.

members of rnao 2009-2010 board of directors
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